% o

N

YORK

CEITY QF

COUNCIL @
N\

/

Notice of a public meeting of

To:

Planning Committee A

Councillors Crawshaw (Chair), Fisher (Vice-Chair), Ayre,
J Burton, Clarke, Cullwick, Melly, Steward, Whitcroft,
Moroney and Watson

Date: Thursday, 16 January 2025

Time: 4.30 pm

Venue: West Offices - Station Rise, York YO1 6GA

AGENDA

Apologies for Absence
To receive and note apologies for absence.

Declarations of Interest (Pages 7 - 8)
At this point in the meeting, Members and co-opted members are
asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary interest, or other
registerable interest, they might have in respect of business on
this agenda, if they have not already done so in advance on the
Register of Interests. The disclosure must include the nature of
the interest.

An interest must also be disclosed in the meeting when it
becomes apparent to the member during the meeting.

[Please see attached sheet for further guidance for Members].

Minutes (Pages 9 - 30)
To approve and sign the minutes of the Planning Committee A
meetings held on 7 November 2024 and 5 December 2024.

Public Participation

At this point in the meeting members of the public who have
registered to speak can do so. Members of the public may speak
on agenda items or on matters within the remit of the committee.



Please note that our registration deadlines are set as 2
working days before the meeting, in order to facilitate the
management of public participation at our meetings. The
deadline for registering at this meeting is 5:00pm on Tuesday,
14 January 2025.

To register to speak please visit
www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings to fill in an online
registration form. If you have any questions about the
registration form or the meeting, please contact Democratic
Services. Contact details can be found at the foot of this agenda.

Webcasting of Public Meetings

Please note that, subject to available resources, this meeting will
be webcast including any registered public speakers who have
given their permission. The meeting can be viewed live and on
demand at www.york.gov.uk/webcasts.

During coronavirus, we made some changes to how we ran
council meetings, including facilitating remote participation by
public speakers. See our updates
(www.york.gov.uk/COVIDDemocracy) for more information on
meetings and decisions.

Plans List
This item invites Members to determine the following planning
applications:

Hungate Development Site, Hungate, York (Pages 31 - 104)
[21/00280/FULM]

Erection of an apartment block to comprise residential units (Use
Class C3) together with flexible commercial uses (Use Class E and
F2), landscaping and associated works (Block H) [Guildhall Ward]

Urgent Business
Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the
Local Government Act 1972.


http://www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings
http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts
http://www.york.gov.uk/COVIDDemocracy

Democratic Services Officer
Angela Bielby

Contact Details:

Telephone — (01904) 552599
Email — a.bielby@york.gov.uk

For more information about any of the following please contact the Democratic
Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting:

Registering to speak

Business of the meeting

Any special arrangements

Copies of reports and

For receiving reports in other formats

Contact details are set out above.

Alternative formats

To request reasonable adjustments or to provide this document in an alternative
language or format such as large print, braille, audio, Easy Read or BSL, you can:

Email us at; cycaccessteam@york.gov.uk

Call us: 01904 551550 and customer services will pass your
request onto the Access Team.

Z":'

é Use our BSL Video Relay Service:
www.york.gov.uk/BSLInterpretingService
Select ‘Switchboard’ from the menu.

@ * ! We can also translate into the following languages:

Y H AT PSS IRIE[EESE (cantonese)
3 B oI e SrEm (Rl (TS AT | (Bengali)

Ta informacja moze by¢ dostarczona w twoim

: (Polish)
wiasnym jezyku.

Bu bilgiyi kendi dilinizde almaniz miimkiindiir. (Turkish)

R D G T, Urdu)



mailto:a.bielby@york.gov.uk
mailto:cycaccessteam@york.gov.uk
http://www.york.gov.uk/BSLInterpretingService

This page is intentionally left blank



(1)

Page 5

Declarations of Interest — guidance for Members

Members must consider their interests, and act according to the

following:

Type of Interest

You must

Interests

Disclosable Pecuniary

Disclose the interest, not participate
in the discussion or vote, and leave
the meeting unless you have a
dispensation.

Other Registrable
Interests (Directly
Related)

OR

Non-Registrable
Interests (Directly
Related)

Disclose the interest; speak on the
item only if the public are also
allowed to speak, but otherwise not
participate in the discussion or vote,
and leave the meeting unless you
have a dispensation.

Other Registrable
Interests (Affects)
OR

Non-Registrable
Interests (Affects)

Disclose the interest; remain in the
meeting, participate and vote unless
the matter affects the financial
interest or well-being:

(a) to a greater extent than it affects
the financial interest or well-being of
a majority of inhabitants of the
affected ward; and

(b) a reasonable member of the
public knowing all the facts would
believe that it would affect your view
of the wider public interest.

In which case, speak on the item
only if the public are also allowed to
speak, but otherwise do not
participate in the discussion or vote,
and leave the meeting unless you
have a dispensation.

Agenda Item 2

(2) Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to the Member concerned or
their spouse/partner.

(3) Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months must
not vote in decisions on, or which might affect, budget calculations,



Page 6

and must disclose at the meeting that this restriction applies to
them. A failure to comply with these requirements is a criminal
offence under section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act
1992.



Page 7 Agenda Item 3

City of York Council Committee Minutes
Meeting Planning Committee A

Date 7 November 2024

Present Councillors Crawshaw (Chair), Fisher (Vice-Chair),

Ayre, B Burton (Substitute for Cllr Whitcroft)
J Burton, Clarke, Melly, Steward, Moroney, Fenton
(Substitute for Clir Wann) and Widdowson
(Substitute for ClIr Cullwick)

In Attendance
Gareth Arnold - Development Manager
Jonathan Kenyon — Principal Planning Officer
Lindsay Jenkins — Senior Planning Officer
Sandra Branigan — Senior Lawyer

Apologies Councillors Cullwick, Wann and Whitcroft

129. Apologies for Absence (4.36pm)

Apologies for absence were received and noted for Clirs Cullwick, Wann
and Whitcroft.

130. Declarations of Interest (4.36pm)

Members were asked to declare at this point in the meeting any disclosable
pecuniary interest or other registerable interest they might have in respect
of business on the agenda, if they had not already done so in advance on
the Register of Interests. Clir Melly noted that she would withdraw for
agenda item 4b [Elvington Water Treatment Works, Kexby Lane, Elvington,
York [24/01238/FULM)] as she had a close personal relationship with a
person in connection with the application. There were no further
declarations of interest.

131. Public Participation (4.37pm)

It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak at the meeting
under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme on general matters within
the remit of the Planning Committee A.

132. Plans List (4.37pm)

Members considered a schedule of reports of the Head of Planning and
Development, relating to the following planning applications, outlining the



Page 8

proposals and relevant policy considerations and setting out the views of
consultees and officers.

133. Land to South and East of the Cemetery, New Lane,
Huntington, York [23/01016/0OUTM] (4.37pm)

Members considered an outline planning application with all matters
reserved except access from Jomast Developments and GBL Projects for
up to 107 dwellings (use class C3) with associated landscaping, public
open space, and vehicular access from New Lane.

The Development Manager gave a presentation on the application. In

response to questions from Members, he explained that:

e Regarding the southern end of the cycleway, the cycleway had been
designed on the basis of The Island being built. If The Island was not
built, the cycle way would end at the hedge.

¢ Where the land granted permission from the Secretary of State was

located.

The bus stop was behind the two-way cycle lane.

The new cycle lane would result in the loss of hedgerow.

The cycle lane width was based on the number of users expected.

The self-seeded ash trees were to be removed.

The Principal Planning Officer gave an update on the application. The
update included a summary of the Ward Councillors representation, an
update on the impact of the scheme on green belt purposes 2, 4 and 5,
correction to paragraph 5.34 and proposed additional conditions regarding
the accommodation mix and phasing plan.

Public Speakers

CllIr Cullwick (Huntington and New Earswick Ward ClIr) spoke in objection
to the application representing some local concerns. He asked if the benefit
of affordable housing were very special circumstances outweighing harm to
the Green Belt. He noted that the application offered no significant
contribution to health provision or local services. He added that the scheme
would result in the loss of one of the last open spaces in the area and that
the loss of part of the vital green wedge was substantial. He noted the
impact of the development on Strensall Common and that there was a lack
of local support for the scheme.

In response to questions from Members, ClIr Cullwick noted that:

e Strensall Common was within the zone of influence.

e Regarding transport links to Strensall Common, there was a bus that ran
through Huntington to Strensall and people also used private transport
to get there.



Page 9

e There had been very little consultation with Ward and Parish
Councillors.

e Strensall Common was a Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) and
most people travelled there in their cars.

e He was not involved in the creation of the Huntington Neighbourhood
Plan.

e The Huntington Neighbourhood Plan should carry weight.

Adam Hearld (Director of Jomast Developments) spoke in support of the
application on behalf of Jomast, joint applicant for the application. He
explained that Jomast were working with Together Homes which was one
of the biggest providers affordable homes. He noted that the scheme was
100% affordable homes and would offer a period of exclusivity to key
workers. He noted that the site had strong pedestrian and transport links.
He noted the ecology measures and that these would result in a net gain in
biodiversity. He added that it was a windfall site needed by the city for its
affordable housing needs.

Colleagues Adam Smout and Philip Holmes joined Adam Hearld to answer

Member questions. They were asked and explained that:

e They had focussed on making a period of exclusivity for key workers
and the offer was there from the outset.

e They were happy for the houses for social rent to be nhominated from the
council.

e A windfall site was any site not provided with an allocation in the Local
Plan. [The Chair advised that the report set out the windfall site and very
special circumstances].

e A segregated cycle lane had been considered. The problem with that
was that more of the existing hedge would need to be removed which
was why there was a 3m width for the shared cycleway.

e People from outside the site using the cycleway had been factored in
which was why there was a signalised crossing and they wanted to
minimise damage to hedges and trees.

e Concerning car use a detailed plan would be worked through with
officers at reserved matters and the site was in an accessible location.

e The mix of affordable housing and social housing had not been set yet
and they were currently at threshold levels.

Members then asked further questions to officers to which they responded

that:

e The mitigation measures for the site were the same as the site to the
north of the site. The indicative open spaces were shown on the layout
plans and there was suitable mitigation based on the plans to the north
of the site.



Page 10

e A Habitat Regulations Assessment (HRA) was undertaken for the site
north of the site.

¢ Reserved matters would consider the layout and landscaping of the
scheme.

e Regarding the Secretary of State’s comments on cumulative impact, the
Principal Planning Officer read out the Secretary of State’s comments
regarding mitigation measures to address the impact on Strensall
Common and it was confirmed that officers did not consider the
application site to have an impact on it.

e The number of bedrooms in houses would be considered at reserved
matters. This was an outline application that set out the principles of the
scheme. There could be a condition regarding the accommodation
schedule to be approved by officers.

e The neighbourhood plan asked for smaller homes to be provided.

e There was different funding for education and health contributions. The
information on education contributions came from officers and regarding
health this was reliant on evidence provided by the NHS.

e Regarding there being no contribution to secondary school places, the
response from education officers requested early years and primary
school places.

e Condition 3 (bus stop and cycle path) would go through the highway
road safety audit process.

e The types of affordable would be detailed in the legal agreement and
would meet NPPF requirements.

e Social rent was of a higher need than part ownership.

e 26 of the homes for social rent and all homes met the NPPF definition of
affordable housing.

e 100% affordable housing weighed heavily in the planning balance.

o Officers’ assessment was the site had limited green belt purposes.

e A number of strategic sites in the Local Plan had been brought to
committee already.

e The nomination rights were normally in the S106 agreement and higher
nomination rights could be sought.

e The S106 for transport was the same as Secretary of State decision on
the application to the north of the site. The travel plan would be
developed based on national guidance.

e After the Inquiry on the land to the north of the site there was
correspondence between the planning inspector and Natural England
and Natural England had been consulted on the HRA.

e The affordable housing officer had been consulted on affordable
housing.

[The meeting adjourned from 6.00pm until 6.11pm]



Page 11

During debate, officers confirmed that:

e A 3m cycle lane width was acceptable for LTN 1/20.

¢ |f the committee were minded to approve the application, Natural
England would have to be notified, and there would be a 21 day period
for consultation with them.

e The definition of a windfall site.

e Exclusivity for key workers could be examined as part of the S106
negotiation around the tenure mix.

Cllr Burton proposed the officer recommendation to delegate authority to be
given to the Head of Planning and Development Services to determine the
final detail of the planning conditions and planning obligations following
referral to the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Application
Government under the requirements of the Town and Country Planning
Consultation Direction (2021), and should the application not be called in
by the Secretary of State, then approve the application subject to planning
conditions and completion of a s106 legal agreement to secure priority
options for keyworkers in addition to the items listed and additional
condition and informative as follows:
¢ Additional conditions regarding the accommodation mix and phasing
plan taking into account the neighbourhood plan and housing needs
assessment.
¢ Additional informative regarding the bus stop and walk/cycle way.
This was seconded by ClIr Melly. Following a vote with six voting in favour
and five against (including Clir Fisher voting against), it was:

Resolved: That delegated authority to be given to the Head of Planning
and Development Services to:

1. Determine the final detail of the planning conditions and
planning obligations.

2. Refer the application to the Secretary of State for Communities
and Local Application Government under the requirements of
the Town and Country Planning Consultation Direction (2021),
and should the application not be called in by the Secretary of
State, then APPROVE the application subject to planning
conditions and completion of a s106 legal agreement to secure
priority options for keyworkers in addition to the items listed and
additional conditions and informative as follows:

I.  Additional condition regarding accommodation mix and
phasing plan taking into account the neighbourhood plan
and housing needs assessment: The reserved matters
applications shall demonstrate that no more than 10 (ten)



Reasons

Page 12

dwellings within the development hereby permitted
contain more than 3 bedrooms at the time of construction.

Reason: to ensure that the accommodation mix is
appropriate, in accordance with DLP 2018 policy H3:
Balancing the housing market and Huntington
Neighbourhood Plan policy H2: Housing mix in new
housing development proposals.

ii.  Additional condition regarding Phasing Plan: Prior to
commencement of construction, a phasing plan detailing
the installation of the highway network, pedestrian and
cycle access points and the open space and green
infrastructure shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The roads shall
be constructed to adoptable standards. The development
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
phasing plan.

Reason: In the interests of safety, and good design in
accordance with NPPF paragraph 135.

lii.  Additional informative regarding the bus stop and
walk/cycle way.

1. The site is in a sustainable location for housing and is of a

design that promotes active travel and health and well-being.
The scheme would provide affordable housing for which there is
an identified need. Windfall schemes such as this, offering
100% affordable housing will be necessary if the Council is to
achieve its ambitions of meeting 45% of affordable housing
need in the period of 2017-2033. The benefits of the affordable
housing proposed carries very substantial weight in favour of
the scheme.

. The harm to the Green Belt would be limited and moderate

weight is given to the visual and landscape adverse impacts as
a consequence of developing the site. The scheme is also
unable to provide a full contribution towards the education and
NHS requests for planning obligations. There is no other harm
arising from the development that cannot be addressed through
planning obligations and conditions.



Page 13

3. The proposals comply with the relevant policies in the
Huntington Neighbourhood Plan in respect of housing need,
housing mix, design principles, active travel and biodiversity.
The benefits of the scheme are considered to clearly outweigh
the identified harms.

[ClIr Melly left the meeting at 7.00pm]

[The meeting adjourned from 7.00pm until 7.06pm]

134. Elvington Water Treatment Works, Kexby Lane, Elvington, York
[24/01238/FULM] (7.06pm)

Members considered a major full application from Ameet Juttla for the
installation of a solar photovoltaic array with associated infrastructure
including transformer, security fencing, pole mounted CCTV, temporary
construction access and compound.

The Development Manager gave a presentation on the application. The
Senior Planning Officer gave an update on the application noting a further
consultation response from the Ouse and Derwent Internal Drainage Board
(IBD), amendments to paragraphs 5.60 and 5.86, amendment to the
recommendation, amendment to condition 10, additional condition 17 (new
access track) and informative regarding drainage notes.

Public Speakers

Ryo Kikuchi spoke in support on behalf of the applicant. He explained the
compliance of the development with policies of the Local Plan as well as
the NPPF. He explained that the renewable energy generated would be
used by Yorkshire Water at the water treatment works. He noted that the
applicant had worked with officers and the local community. He added that
the scheme would provide biodiversity net gain and that residents were in
support of the development. He was asked and explained that all power
generated would go to Yorkshire Water.

Officers were asked and confirmed there had been no response on the
application from Elvington Parish Council and the Civil Aviation Authority.
Following debate, Clir Ben Burton proposed the officer recommendation to
delegate authority to the Head of Planning and Development Services to
approve the application subject to the referral of the application to the
Secretary of State, the completion of a Section 106 Agreement to secure a
monitoring contribution of £3,300, to secure the planning obligations
regarding on-site Biodiversity Net Gain, finalise the S106 agreement,
amendment to condition 10 and amendment to condition 10, additional



Page 14

condition 17 (new access track) and informative regarding drainage notes.
This was seconded by ClIr Fenton. Following a unanimous vote in favour it

was:

Resolved:

That delegated authority be given to the Head of Planning
and Development Services to APPROVE the application
subject to:

a) The referral of the application to the Secretary of State under

the Town and Country Planning (Consultation) (England)
Direction 2021, and subject to the application not being
called-in by the Secretary of State for their own
determination:

b) The completion of a Section 106 Agreement to secure a

monitoring contribution of £3,300 to secure the following
planning obligations:

e On-site Biodiversity Net Gain — to secure a monitoring
contribution in respect of biodiversity net gain
monitoring where a development will deliver some
biodiversity net gain on-site and the maintenance and
monitoring of any biodiversity is secured by a condition
imposed on the development.

The Head of Planning and Development Services be given
delegated authority to finalise the terms and details of the
Section 106 Agreement.

The Head of Planning and Development Services be given
delegated authority to determine the final detail of the
following planning conditions listed in the published report,
following amendment to condition 10 amendment to
condition 10, additional condition 17 (new access track) and
informative regarding drainage notes:

Amendment to condition 10
10 A programme of post-determination archaeological
evaluation is required.




Page 15

Each stage shall be completed and agreed by the Local
Planning Authority (LPA) before it can be
discharged/approved.

A) No archaeological evaluation or development of any kind
shall take place until a written scheme of investigation (WSI)
for 3% trenching evaluation has been submitted to and
approved by the local planning authority in writing. The final
sampling strategy for trenching evaluation shall be agreed
through consultation with the LPA prior to submitting any
WSI. The WSI should conform to standards and guidance
set by the LPA and the Chartered Institute for
Archaeologists.

Additional Condition 17

17 The new access track hereby permitted shall be
constructed using a permeable surface that is a type 3 (free
draining) material with details of the extent of the access
track and its construction including materials to be submitted
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior
to the construction of the access track. The access track
shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details
and shall be retained for the lifetime for the development.
Reason: To ensure that the construction of the access track
does not increase surface water runoff, in accordance with
the NPPF and ENV5 of the DLP 2018.

Additional Informative

4. Drainage Notes

I. The applicant should be advised that the proposed
development is within the Ouse and Derwent Internal
Drainage Board's area and is adjacent to Horse Dyke which,
at this location, is maintained by the Board under permissive
powers within the Land Drainage Act 1991.

ii. The applicant should be advised that the Ouse and
Derwent Internal Drainage Board’s prior consent is required
(outside the planning process) for access to the watercourse
for maintenance or improvements, a strip of land 9m wide
adjacent to the top of the embankment of the watercourse
known as Horse Dyke, to be kept clear of all new structures,
solar panels, fencing and hardstanding. Any new planting
must be located a minimum of one metre from the bank top
on the northern side of the watercourse.

lii. The written consent of the Board is required prior to any
discharge, or increase in the rate of discharge, into any
watercourse (directly or indirectly) within the Board’s District.




Reasons:

Page 16

1. This application, with an Environmental Statement relates to

the development of solar photovoltaic array to generate 3200
Kilowatts (KW) (3.2 Megawatt (MW) and be used to power
the operations of the Elvington WWTW.

. The site is located within the general extent of the Green

Belt. In the overall balancing exercise, substantial weight
should be given to the harm to the Green Belt. The benefits
of the generation of significant amount of renewable energy
are considered to clearly outweigh the harm to the Green
Belt. These therefore amount to very special circumstances
necessary to justify the inappropriate development in the
Green Belt. The proposals are therefore found to accord
with Green Belt policy in the NPPF.

. The visual effects of the development and impact on

landscape character is set to improve from a minor-moderate
adverse effect in year 1 to negligible beneficial at year 15
depending on the rate of establishment and continue to
lessen overtime due to retention of key hedgerows and trees
and additional landscape planting around the perimeter of
the site. There would be minimal impact of the development
when viewed from neighbouring residential properties, given
the arable landscape and landscape features and the
existing WWTW as a major developed industrial site, in the
background, and overall distances would result in the solar
panels forming a relatively thin visual strip.

. On-site habitat enhancements for BNG would be achieved

and this would be secured via condition (habitat
management and monitoring plan) and a S106 (to secure
the monitoring requirements). The applicant will be advised
of their requirements to secure the onsite habitat
enhancements for 30years through the Biodiversity Gain
Plan via an informative. Additionally, despite the close
proximity of the site to statutory nature conservation sites of
international and national importance, there are no concerns
In respect to significant impacts arising from the proposed
development, specifically during the operation phases.
Conditions are recommended to ensure that the ecological



Page 17

habitats are protected during de-commissioning, when the
requirements of BNG remain a requirement.

Clir J Crawshaw, Chair
[The meeting started at 4.30pm and finished at 7.20pm].



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 19

City of York Council Committee Minutes
Meeting Planning Committee A

Date 5 December 2024

Present Councillors Crawshaw (Chair), Fisher (Vice-Chair),

Ayre, Clarke, Cullwick, Melly, Moroney, B Burton
(Substitute for ClIr Whitcroft), Merrett (Substitute for
ClIr 3 Burton), Rowley (Substitute for Clir Steward)
and Fenton (Substitute for Clir Wann)

Sandra Branigan — Senior Lawyer

In Attendance Becky Eades — Head of Planning and Development
Services
Natalie Scholey— Senior Planning Officer

Apologies Councillors J Burton, Steward, Wann and Whitcroft

135. Apologies for Absence (4.38pm)

Apologies for absence were received and noted for Cllrs J Burton, Steward,
Wann and Whitcroft.

136. Declarations of Interest (4.38pm)

Members were asked to declare at this point in the meeting any disclosable
pecuniary interest or other registerable interest they might have in respect
of business on the agenda, if they had not already done so in advance on
the Register of Interests. Clir Clarke noted that his employer had submitted
an objection in relation to agenda item 5a (Land Lying to the North West of
Murton Way, York) and he would withdraw from the meeting for that
application.

137. Minutes (4.39pm)

Resolved:
1. That the minutes of the meeting held on 24 October 2024 be
approved as a correct record subject to the fourth bullet point of
Max Reeve’s public participation changing to: ‘Waterloo Place
was named as it was because it was the name of a previous
route that went to the river from Coney Street.’



Page 20

2. That the approval of the minutes of the meeting held on 11
November 2024 be deferred until the detail of the bullet point on
the S106 agreement was clarified.

138. Public Participation (4.41pm)

It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak at the meeting
under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme on general matters within
the remit of the Planning Committee A.

139. Plans List (4.41pm)

Members considered a schedule of reports of the Head of Planning and
Development, relating to the following planning applications, outlining the
proposals and relevant policy considerations and setting out the views of
consultees and officers.

140. Land Lying to the North West of Murton Way, York
[23/02030/FULM] (4.41pm)

Members considered a Major Full Application from Net Zero Fourteen
Limited for the Erection of a Battery Energy Storage System with
associated infrastructure, site levelling works, access, landscaping and
ancillary works.

The Head of Planning and Development outlined the application and gave
a presentation on it, advising that Members needed to base their decision
on the elevation plans. She was asked and explained that there was no
detail in the planning site in relation to the proposed extension of the
Travellers site.

The Senior Planning Officer gave an update noting that an updated cover
letter from the Agent, noting that the discharge rate had been corrected in
the document to 1.93 |I/s. Additional representations had also been
received, taking the letters of support to 13. A petition had also been
received from a Shared Voices email and as the Local Planning Authority
was unable to verify the submissions, they could not be considered
individually. There had also been a letter in support of refusal from Clir
Warters, which was included in the update.

Public Speakers

John Cossam spoke in support of the application. He noted that he lived on
Hull Road, which was 5 minutes from the site and that he tried to live
ecofriendly. He explained that there was a number of reasons stopping
people from going green and that the battery farm addressed the




Page 21

technological need. He added that the battery farm was an excellent way of
storing energy and would allow the absorption of low energy in a climate
emergency.

Steven Gough (NetZero Fourteen Ltd) spoke in support of the application
on behalf of the applicant. He noted that there were 100 representations in
support of the application. He addressed the four recommended reasons
for refusal in relation to the Green Belt, very special circumstances and
battery storage. He noted that the visual impacts were localised and the on
site boundary was well screen. Regarding fire safety he noted that the
North Yorkshire fire authority had not objected and that they (the applicant)
had commissioned an independent fire expert. He added that the best and
most versatile land was grade 2 and 3 and that the proposal could be found
acceptable on its own merits.

Members asked Stephen Cough a number of questions to which he

explained that:

e The NFCC guidance regarding the distance of 6m between units was
guidance, not policy. There was two points of access into the battery
compound and the safety expert commissioned concluded that the
application was in line with NFCC guidance.

e The author of the report was not a qualified safety engineer and was an
expert in safety. He added that North Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Service
had raised no objection to the application.

e How the electricity was sent to the storage units.

e There would be no disruption to the infrastructure.

e York needed battery storage and Osbaldwick was the only location for
the battery storage.

e Regarding the exploration of other sites, they needed to understand the
capacity on the network and then looks at sites, working with the owners
of the sites identified. He noted that the only outstanding point with the
scheme was planning permission.

¢ All the sites they were dealing with were of similar spacing. The NFCC
guidance, which was not yet updated, reduced the space between
battery storage. He added that the spacing satisfied the manufacturers
guidance.

e There was pressure on getting battery storage to the grid and they were
trying to improve battery storage.

e The appeals for other applications were all Green Belt sites.

e The Energy Act 2023 changed to make energy storage its own
component. The value of energy storage systems like the application
one would come into their own in time.



Page 22

As the grid transitioned from fossil to renewable, there was a need to be
able to store energy, and the battery storage supported the grid in the
transition.

An explanation was given on how battery storage compared to air
compression and pump systems.

Regarding the weight put on NFCC guidance, there was guidance
regarding safety but it was guidance. The assessor had looked at the
manufacturers guidance and concluded the scheme was safe.

The safety expert was chosen by reputation, qualifications and
experience and was an independent assessor.

Members then asked officers questions to which they responded:

North Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Service had said that they won’t object
or support the application and they referred to the guidance.

Significant weight was placed on national guidance.

Officers did not consider the Principal Consultant at a Risk Consultancy
Firm to constitute a fire risk engineer.

There was one access point to the site according to the guidance.
There were three cases granted at appeal and officers had considered
information from other relevant cases. Regarding the appeals, each
case was considered on their own merits and were under a different set
of circumstances.

The NPPF did not specify types of energy storage and just stated
energy storage.

In the NPPF the scheme would be considered inappropriate
development.

Officers had given substantial weight to the energy storage and had
concluded that it could not be guaranteed that it was renewable.
Members needed to be confident that fire safety would not cause an
issue and there was legislation that covered certain aspects and policy
needed to be taken into consideration. Fire and Rescue had advised
what guidance needed to be followed.

If the application was approved, the application could not come back
regarding access as the single access would already have been
granted.

The comments of the landscape officer were noted and Members were
advised that the landscape officer was a landscape architect with
necessary qualifications.

Following debate, Clir Ayre proposed the officer to refuse the application.
This was seconded by ClIr Cullwick. The Senior Lawyer reminded
Members of the test for very special circumstances to exist when there is
harm to the Green Belt. Following a vote with six voting in favour, two
against and two abstentions, it was.



Resolved:

Reasons:

Page 23

That the application be refused.

1. The proposed battery energy storage system would be

inappropriate development in the Green Belt. The development
would be significantly harmful to the openness of the Green Belt
and conflict would arise with purposes a, b and c of paragraph
143 of the NPPF of including land within the Green Belt.
Substantial weight is attached to the harm to the Green Belt.
The benefits associated with the proposal, would be insufficient
to clearly outweigh the harms identified. Consequently, the very
special circumstances necessary to justify the inappropriate
development do not exist. The proposal is therefore contrary to
paragraphs 152-155 of the NPPF (2023) and policy GB1 of
Draft Local Plan (2018, as amended 2023).

. The proposed development would have a considerably adverse

impact on the landscape character of the site, due to the
addition of built forms of an industrial appearance that would be
detrimental to the landscape character. The proposal would
extend the sense of industry associated with Osbaldwick
industrial estate and Osbaldwick substation, into what is
currently an arable field that is contiguous with the open
countryside surrounding the city of York. The proposed
development would be a prominent encroachment into the open
countryside and would be viewed as an incongruous feature in
the landscape, in particular in dormant seasons. It would not be
sympathetic to local landscape character and is a considerable
distance from the existing energy infrastructure to the south.
The proposal is therefore contrary to paragraph 135 of the
NPPF (2023) and policies CC1, D1 and D2 of the Draft Local
Plan (2018, as amended).

. The detailed layout of battery containers, turning points,

passing places and number of access points would contravene
the expert national guidance and has not been demonstrated to
be safe. The Planning Practise Guidance and the North
Yorkshire Fire Service are clear that the Grid Scale Battery
Energy Storage System Planning BESS Design Guidance
should be taken into account when determining applications. In
this instance it has not been demonstrated that the
development will be made safe from fire hazards in conflict with
policy CC1 and ENV2 of the Draft Local Plan (2018, as
amended), the Grid Scale Battery Energy Storage System



Page 24

Planning BESS Design Guidance and paragraph 032 of the
Planning Practise Guidance.

4. The application site is undeveloped Grade 3 agricultural land
and the proposal would see the temporary loss of 3.4 hectares
of good to moderate agricultural land. The proposal is in conflict
with policy CC1 of the Draft Local Plan (2018) and paragraph
180 (b) of the NPPF (2023).

[The meeting adjoured from 5.53pm until 6.03pm. CliIr Clarke rejoined the
meeting at 6.03pm].

141. OS Field Lying to the South of and adjacent to No 1 Tadcaster
Road Copmanthorpe York [23/02256/REMM and 24/00003/LEGAL]
(6.03pm)

Members considered a major reserved matters application from Robert
Carter for the for the scale, layout, appearance and landscape for the
erection of 133 dwellings, 7 self-build dwellings and associated
infrastructure pursuant to outline application 18/00680/OUTM and variation
of Legal Agreement (affordable housing tenure mix and reallocation of
Highways Sim Balk Contribution to provide bus stops) made under Section
106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) dated 27th
April 2023 (in relation to 18/00680/OUTM).

Referring to paragraph 1.3 of the published report, the Chair reminded the
committee of what could and could not be considered. The Head of
Planning and Development Services noted that the application and legal
agreement were being considered. She outlined the application and gave a
presentation on it. She was asked and showed where York Field Lane and
the self-build plots were located on the plans.

At this point, Cllr Merrett declared a non-pecuniary interest as a member of
York Bus Forum. He asked and was shown where the bus stops were in
relation to the crossing and the Head of Highway Access and Development
noted that it was an uncontrolled crossing with the speed limit on the road
being 30mph.

Members were provided with an update giving clarification on the points
raised by waste services. The Head of Environment Services stated that:
‘The statement from waste services recognises in future that collections will
not happen from unadopted road such as farm tracks, however for new
residential estates such as the one in this applications waste collections will
take place where the CYC waste and recycling crews can safely access the



Page 25

site and there is a road surface (temporary or completed) by which it can
safely support all waste collections.’

A Member asked how this related to paragraph 5.21 of the published report
and the Head of Highway Access and Development clarified that waste
services would not drink on a private drive and some people on the site
would have to take their waste to waste collection points. She was asked
and noted that the majority if waste collection points were within 30m.

Public Speaker

Vikki Sykes (Agent for Applicant) spoke in support of the applications. She
explained that the applicant had worked with consultees on the
development to provide a wide range of 1 to 5 bedroom homes
(predominantly 2 and 3 bedrooms) and to provide housing for older
residents. She explained that a key component of the scheme was
landscaping and she outlined the outdoor space, noting that it provided for
a variety of ages. She added that the applicant had worked closely with the
community and had made amendments to the scheme. She noted that
Miller Homes committed nationally to the homes for nature scheme and
she noted that there had also undertaken consultation with Network Rail.

Vikki Sykes was joined lan Thomson (Miller Homes) and Andrew Naylor
(Miller Homes) to answer Member questions. They were asked and
explained that:

¢ A residents management company would look after the green space and
playground.

e Joseph Rowntree Trust preferred intermediate rent provision for the 4
bedroom properties and the bungalows.

e Planning for the phasing for the self builds was through engagement
with the self-build officer and there was a condition to have delivered the
road to allow access to the self-build site.

e There was a tenure plan for private and social housing spread out
through the route of the site. This was included in the S106 of the outline
application.

e Regarding the type of play equipment for different age groups they
would look at products used, for example steel and wood.

Members then asked officers further points of clarification. Officers

explained that:

e The bus shelters were likely to be standing bus shelters with seating.

e Any extension of the 30mph zone near the A64 would be through a
Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) process. The Senior Lawyer advised that
the TRO contribution was secured by the S106 agreement for the outline
planning permission. The Head of Highway Access and Development



Page 26

noted that the Highways Authority could look at the extension of the
30mph zone when looking at the TRO for the 20mph zone on the site.

¢ Regarding the number of 4 bedroom homes being high, this was an
amendment made on the comments of the Forward Plan officer.

¢ A Member noted that it would be useful for Members to have information
on the affordable homes split. Officers undertook to look into this for
future meetings.

e On the planning balance, the tree provision was acceptable.

Following debate, Clir Fisher moved the officer recommendation to approve
the reserved matters application for the scale, layout, appearance and
landscape for the erection of 133 dwellings, 7 self-build dwellings and
associated infrastructure pursuant to outline application 18/00680/OUTM
and the variation of Legal Agreement (affordable housing tenure mix and
reallocation of Highways Sim Balk Contribution to provide bus stops) made
under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
amended) dated 27th April 2023 (in relation to 18/00680/OUTM). This was
seconded by ClIr Merrett. Separate votes were taken for each and both
were unanimously approved. Therefore it was;

Resolved: That the application be approved with conditions, subject to
variation to Section 106 Agreement to secure:
- £40,000 towards bus stops on Tadcaster Road (instead of
towards signal controller upgrade works at the 1036/Sim Balk
Lane corridor)
- Affordable housing mix of 71% social rent and 29%
intermediate rent dwellings.

Reasons:

1. The proposed layout, appearance, scale, access and
landscaping of the development for 140no. dwellings and open
space at land off Tadcaster Road is considered acceptable and
adheres to the parameters plans approved at outline planning
stage. The development provides a range of house types and
tenures, including bungalows, in accordance with local need.
Affordable housing and self build plots are provided in
accordance with outline permission conditions and the s106
legal agreement for the site. The layout provides an attractive,
verdant development promoting active travel through provision
of the infrastructure for walking and cycling. Amenity is
protected for existing neighbours and proposed residents. The
scheme accords with NPPF advice and the National Design
Guide, in particular in respect of place-making and the
promotion of sustainable and active travel. The scheme is also



Page 27

consistent with relevant policies in the Draft Local Plan (2018,
as amended in 2023).

2. A condition is deemed necessary in respect of the listing of the
approved plans. A condition requiring parking to be in place
prior to occupation (and retained as such) is also deemed
necessary. Other matters are already dealt with via the
conditions on the outline permission. Approval is therefore
recommended subject to conditions and subject to varying the
s106 legal agreement with regard to the affordable housing
change to intermediate rent dwellings and the inclusion of the
contribution towards bus stops on Tadcaster Road.

Clir J Crawshaw, Chair
[The meeting started at 4.30pm and finished at 6.37pm].



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 29 Agenda Item 5a
COMMITTEE REPORT

Date: 16.01.2025 Ward: Guildhall

Team: East Area Parish: Guildhall Planning Panel

Reference: 21/00280/FULM

Application at: Hungate Development Site Hungate York

For: Erection of an apartment block to comprise residential units (Use

Class C3) together with flexible commercial uses (Use Class E
and F2), landscaping and associated works (Block H)

By: Hungate (York) Regeneration Limited
Application Type: Major Full Application
Target Date: 15 March 2024

Recommendation: Approve subject to Section 106 Agreement

1.0 PROPOSAL

1.1 A hybrid planning application (part outline and part detailed) for the
redevelopment of the remaining phases of the Hungate site (Blocks D, F, G and H)
was approved in April 2017, following a resolution to grant planning permission by
Planning Committee in December 2015 (15/01709/0UTM). Blocks D and F were
granted full planning permission, whilst Blocks G and H were granted outline
planning permission.

1.2 This application seeks full planning permission for Block H, which comprises
development of a residential apartment building (five to seven storeys) providing 221
residential apartments (Use Class C3), 329 square metres (GEA) of flexible ground
floor space (Use Class E commercial and F2 community uses), landscaping and
associated works.

1.3 The plans have been revised since submission with a key change being the
decision to take Block H forward on a build to rent basis. Build to rent is defined in
the NPPF as “purpose-built housing that is typically 100% rented out ... Schemes
will usually offer longer tenancy agreements of three years or more, and will typically
be professionally managed stock in single ownership and management control”.

1.4 As part of this build to rent scheme, communal residential amenity spaces would
be provided within the courtyard, at rooftop level and internally at ground floor level

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 30

along the Stonebow and on the southern corner of the block facing St Johns
Square.

1.5 Other revisions made since the application was originally submitted include -

- Removal of a proposed 8™ storey.

- Small extension to the 7™" storey element along Dundas Street to incorporate an
extra unit.

- Re-allocation of part of the Stonebow ground floor from commercial/retail to
residential amenity.

- Creation of a more prominent main entrance from Stonebow and relocation of the
external courtyard link to the back of the main entrance core, closer to Stonebow.

1.6 The key changes in this application to the outline parameters approved under
15/01709/0OUTM are summarised as follows -

- Anincrease of 52 residential units (from 169 to 221).

- Removal of the basement car park and relocation of plant.
- Refuse and cycle storage relocated to ground floor.

- Minor amendments to the building footprint.

- Anincrease to the extent of the seventh floor.

THE SITE

1.7 The application site relates to Block H only and extends to an area of 0.5
hectares. The site is within the wider Hungate development site (a housing
allocation in the Draft Local Plan 2018) and is located off Stonebow, just outside the
Central Historic Core Conservation Area with the Conservation Area boundary
following the north-eastern side of the Stonebow and the northern bank of the Foss.
The site borders Character Area 8, Aldwark of the York Central Historic Core
Conservation Area Appraisal (YCHCCAA) and there are multiple listed buildings in
close proximity on the opposite side of Stonebow including early Georgian houses of
St Saviourgate (Grade Il / 11*), Lady Hewley’s Almshouses (Grade Il), Peasholme
House (Grade II*) and St Anthonys Hall (Grade ).

1.8 The site of Block H is bound by -

- The Stonebow to the north and north-west.
- The Hiscox building to the north-east with the Moxy Hotel beyond.

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 31

- Block D of the Hungate Urban Neighbourhood to the east (not yet
constructed), beyond which lies Blocks A, B and C of the Hungate scheme.

- St Johns Square to the south-east, beyond which lies the completed Block E.

- St John Central student accommodation to the south with the existing multi
storey car park beyond.

- Block G to the south-west (not yet constructed).

1.9 The delivery of the Hungate Urban Neighbourhood is well advanced. Blocks A,
B, C, E and F are built and occupied alongside the new library / cafe, a pedestrian
footbridge over the River Foss and the Kings pool Nature Reserve. Enabling works
are complete on Blocks G and D. The planning permissions for the remaining
blocks are subject to conditions to secure the delivery of St Johns Square.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT

1.10 The Council issued a formal Screening Opinion in December 2020 confirming
that the proposal would not result in any significant environmental effects and that
the scheme does not constitute EIA development. An Environmental Compliance
Statement has been submitted with the application to provide contextual information
on likely environmental effects arising from the development, which demonstrates
via a number of documents and assessments, that significant effects are unlikely.
There have been no relevant changes to policy or site conditions and it remains the
case that an EIA is not required.

2.0 POLICY CONTEXT
2.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires
that determinations be made in accordance with the development plan unless

material considerations indicate otherwise.

National Planning Policy Framework

2.2 Central Government guidance is contained in the National Planning Policy
Framework published December 2024 (NPPF) and is a material consideration in the
determination of this application. Paragraph 11 establishes the presumption in
favour of sustainable development, which runs through both plan-making and
decision-taking.

Key relevant sections of the NPPF

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 32

Section 4 — Decision Making

Section 5 — Delivering a sufficient supply of homes
Section 7 — Ensuring the vitality of town centres
Section 11 — Making effective use of land

Section 12 — Achieving well-designed places

Draft Local Plan 2018 (DLP 2018)

2.3 The Draft Local Plan was submitted for examination on 25" May 2018. It has
now been subject to examination and is expected to be adopted in 2025. The draft
policies can be afforded weight in accordance with paragraph 49 of the NPPF.

Key relevant policies of the Draft Local Plan 2018 (DLP 2018)

DML1 — Infrastructure and Developer Contributions
DP2 — Sustainable Development

DP3 — Sustainable Communities

SS1 - Delivering Sustainable Growth for York
SS3 - York City Centre

SS17 - Hungate

H1 — Housing Allocations

H2 - Density of Residential Development

H3 — Balancing the Housing Market

H10 — Affordable Housing

HW2 — New Community Facilities

HW3 — Built Sport Facilities

HW4 — Childcare Provision

HW?7 — Healthy Places

D1 — Placemaking

D2 — Landscape and Setting

D4 — Conservation Areas

D6 — Archaeology

D7 — The Significance of Non-Designated Heritage Assets
Gl6 — New Open Space Provision

ENV1 — Air Quality

ENV2 — Managing Environmental Quality
ENV3 — Land Contamination

ENV4 — Flood Risk

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 33

ENV5 — Sustainable Drainage

T1 — Sustainable Access

DM1 — Infrastructure and Developer Contributions

CC1 - Renewable and Low Carbon Energy Generation and Storage
CC2 - Sustainable Design and Construction of New Development

2.4 The evidence base underpinning the DLP 2018 is capable of being a material
consideration in the determination of planning applications. The directly relevant
evidence base comprises —

- Local Housing Needs Assessment (LHNA)
- Open Space and Green Infrastructure Update 2017

3.0 CONSULTATIONS
INTERNAL
DESIGN & CONSERVATION (DESIGN)

3.1 No objection. Officers has raised issue with the overall building height and the
reduction in balconies. The excessive height would have made the building unduly
oppressive and enclosing over public spaces and out of character with the
townscape; the lack of balconies would have reduced visual interest. Issues were
addressed in revised plans, with the omission of 8™ floor and addition of a
reasonable number of balconies. The building massing is now consistent with the
existing consented parameters for Hungate.

Proposed Site Layout and Architectural Approach

3.2 Architecturally, the ground floor is now more occupied by service spaces than
before (previously in the basement). Their main street impact is on Dundas Street,
which is already a service street and so acceptable. Hungate and St Johns Square
would have a desirable proportion of commercial space. Some sort of non-
residential use is vital for the ground floor amination facing Stonebow (given the
character of the street) .

3.3 Direct ground floor access is provided to some apartments which is good
design practice providing individualism, activation and sense of greater ownership to
the street scene. Some flat roofs would add desirable additional communal private

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 34

open space. Elsewhere flat roofs are green; desirable for ecology/surface water run
off rate reasons.

Architectural Design

3.4 The design follows an established approach of building in brick with aluminium
windows, and metal balconies. Care should be given to avoid illogical/artificial
changes in brick choice, which can be controlled by condition.

3.5 The Hungate elevation successfully models building massing to avoid
blandness and accommodate recessed balconies. Commercial fenestration is
designed with complexity and feels appropriate to a city of interesting shop fronts.
Corner balconies project and are given an art-like treatment to guarding.

3.6 Building height - the proposal is now roughly in accordance with the height
limits and floor area of the permitted outline scheme. Non-accordance is an
extension of the two wings at 7th floor by approx. 6 metres and removal, in places,
of the slight set back of the permitted scheme at this level. Whilst a fully compliant
scheme would be preferable, on balance (as a whole architectural design), this
volume increase is not objected to.

DESIGN & CONSERVATION (LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT)
3.7 No objection to revised scheme.

- The seating and play equipment within the central courtyard has been revised.
This now includes more appealing play equipment, which also provides a
greater range of activities. Seating has also been re-located around the
perimeter of the play space against the planting. The courtyard scheme
includes a good depth, range, and scale of planting.

- Tree pit details for The Stonebow have been provided and show the correct
detail and level of detail.

- The building has been brought down in height. This slightly improves the
relationship between the height of the building relative to the footprint of the
courtyard and hence the quality of the environment, in particular in relation to
the domineering effect of the surrounding building, and the extent of direct
sunlight reaching the courtyard space, as well as the ground floor apartments.

DESIGN & CONSERVATION (ECOLOGIST)

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 35
3.8 No objection subject to conditions.

- Nesting Birds - Precaution methods will need to be undertaken to ensure
active nests are not destroyed during any required vegetation clearance
works.

- Landscape and Ecological Management Plan (LEMP). Recommendations for
biodiversity enhancements have been set out in the PEA report which include
the provision of native planting, where possible and the installation of bird
nesting features, with numbers and box types provided. A LEMP should be
used to detail how these enhancements are to be installed, managed and
maintained.

- Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) - The need for a
CEMP is highlighted within the Environmental Compliance Statement, to
ensure the protection of significant ecological features (including the river
Foss).

DESIGN & CONSERVATION (ARCHAEOLOGIST)
No objection subject to conditions.

3.9 Previous works saw the removal of the large majority of the archaeological
resource within the curtilage of Block H in two phases. However, an apron of
unexcavated archaeology remains in-situ around the perimeter of the site. The
southern extent for the current Block H proposal encroaches into Palmer Lane which
has also not been excavated.

3.10 Itis expected that the archaeology that remains will contain elements of the
post-medieval Cordwainers Hall, 10" century domestic buildings and Roman burials.
Any groundworks relating to the installation of foundations for the new buildings and
provision of utilities within the unexcavated areas will disturb archaeological features
and deposits.

3.11 A watching brief and excavation where relevant (on human remains and 10"
century archaeology) will be required during ground reduction / enabling works
related to the piling areas. A sample of piles will be monitored which will be devised
on location and potential impact (which may or may not be more than 25%). A
watching brief will also be required during any additional ground disturbing works in
non-excavated areas and along the edge of the site fronting onto St John’s Square.

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 36

HOUSING STRATEGY TEAM

3.12 Recent applications at Hungate have included an off-site affordable housing
contribution in accordance with the 2017 Section 106 Agreement, which specified a
contribution of 17% of the total homes from the proposed application. The value of
such has been taken as the benchmark for determining the affordable housing
provision on-site for this scheme.

3.13 As the scheme is proposed to be build-to-rent and the policy expectation is for
affordable provision on-site officers have advised on the discount rates required to
ensure units are locally affordable. The amounts specified are informed by the
Local Housing Needs Assessment 2022. Officers preferred discount, based on the
applicants forecasted rent rates is a blended 41.6% discount. Based on the
applicants forecasted rent rates the agreed provision of affordable units would be -

1-bed (15 units) discount 38% - rent £693 per month.
2-bed (7 units) discount 50% - rent £864 per month.

PUBLIC PROTECTION

Noise / Odour

3.14 Conditions which require the following details are recommended -

- The building envelope of all residential accommodation to be constructed to
achieve certain internal noise levels.

- Noise insulation scheme for commercial premises that adjoin / are beneath
residential premises to protect the residential accommodation from noise
internally generated by the proposed commercial uses (officer note this is not
necessary as it is a requirement under Building Regulations).

- Details of machinery, plant and equipment for commercial areas.

- Hours of delivery to and despatch from the commercial units and details of
measures to manage noise from deliveries.

- Hours of operation of the commercial units.

Contaminated Land

3.15 The site has past industrial uses including a gas works, warehouses, garages,
and timber works. Previous ground investigations have revealed that land
contamination is present at the site and remediation work has already been carried

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 37

out on parts of the site. The applicant has submitted an assessment and the
conclusions that the soils are suitable for the proposed use are accepted. However,
the applicant will be required to carry out a ground investigation to ensure that the
ground gas risk is suitably assessed. Contaminated land conditions are
recommended.

Air Quality

3.16 There are no relevant significant changes to the previously approved baseline
or potential air quality impacts associated with the latest proposals. The conclusions
of the previously approved air quality assessment reports are still considered valid.

3.17 The Traffic Assessment submitted in support of the current application states
that the traffic flows associated with the development / additional units will not result
in a significant impact in terms of the operation of the local road network. In line with
CYC'’s draft Low Emission Planning Guidance, the predicted increases in traffic
would not necessitate further air quality assessment.

3.18 No new parking spaces will be provided with residents of Block H allocated
spaces from the spare parking capacity that remains within the earlier phases of the
Hungate development. Public Protection understands there are already electric
vehicle charging facilities located within the multi-storey car park attached to Block F
and these will be available to new residents.

3.19 Construction related activities are likely to lead to an increase in rates of dust
soiling at nearby receptors, adjacent to the site boundary. It is considered that any
adverse impacts can be controlled/managed via good working practice and site-
specific mitigation. These should be outlined in a Construction Environmental
Management Plan (CEMP).

Lighting
3.20 A condition requiring details of any external lighting is recommended to ensure
that lighting from the development is considered and does not cause any adverse

impact on proposed and existing residential properties.

HIGHWAY NETWORK MANAGEMENT

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 38

3.21 Data included in the Transport Statement (TS) suggests car parking demand
would be around 70 car parking spaces for Block H. The proposal is for 48 car
parking spaces to be allocated. This approach is supported, subject to a contribution
towards parking management measures around the site. Although parking
restrictions are already in place in the vicinity of the site, overspill parking could take
place on streets within a 1km walking distance of the site. Some of these areas are
not currently within controlled parking (ResPark) zones. A contribution of £15,000 is
requested to be used for parking management measures within a 1km radius of the
site.

EDUCATION

3.21 Education contributions (to be secured through legal agreement) are
requested as follows -

Number of places | Schools Amount
Primary 7 Fishergate/St Oswalds | £132,832
Secondary 3 Fulford £78,378
Early Years 9 Within 1.5km £170,784

Total: £381,994
FLOOD RISK MANAGEMENT

3.22 No objection provided the development is carried out in accordance with the
submitted flood risk assessment (FRA) as amended by the Flood Risk Addendum
and the following mitigation measures it details -

- Provision of safe route(s) at a minimum of 10.0m Above Ordnance Datum
(AOD) into and out of the site,

- Finished floor levels are set no lower than 11.02m AOD for ‘More Vulnerable’
(residential uses) and between 9.8m AOD and 10.47m AOD for the ‘Less
Vulnerable’ (commercial uses).

- The temporary flood defence/proofing measures (raised entrances and flood
gates).

(Officer note - the proposed ground floor plan shows the internal courtyard and
ground floor apartments set at 11.07 AOD)

SPORT AND ACTIVE LEISURE
Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 39

3.23 An off-site contribution is required for off-site play, amenity and sport (as per
the previous applications for the development). For amenity and play space the
contributions required are £43,941 and £36,820 respectively to be used in the
locality.

3.24 Sport - a contribution of £61,983 is required towards the following schemes
which are within 15 - 20-minute walking distance or within 20 minutes on public
transport of the Development -

- Clubhouse and ancillary facility improvements at Heworth Rugby Club.
- Multi-use games area within Heworth Without.

- Improvements to Hull Road Park and Glen Gardens or

- another suitable sports project at the time of the payment.

WASTE MANAGEMENT

3.25 Officers have raised issue with the scheme because a designated collection
point was requested within the boundary of the development and within 10m of the
highway. (Officer note — the proposals are that a management company will provide
the bins for collection and return to bin stores when they are over 10m from the
highway. A condition is proposed to secure such).

3.26 Previous concerns raised regarding the calculation used to establish the
amount of waste bins at the site have been addressed by the applicant such that the
revised total number of bins to be provided for the 226 dwellings is acceptable.
Commercial waste should be stored separately to the residential waste as this would
not be subject to the Council collection service.

CARBON REDUCTION TEAM

3.27 The heating solution proposed — communal heating system using ASHP
technology and storage indicates compliance with the climate change policies in the
Draft Local Plan.

EXTERNAL

HISTORIC ENGLAND

3.28 No comments. Suggest officers seek the views of the Council’s specialist
Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 40
conservation and archaeological advisers, as relevant.
ENVIRONMENT AGENCY

3.29 No objections to the proposed development provided it is built in accordance
with the Flood Risk Assessment and FRA Addendum.

YORKSHIRE WATER

3.30 YW records indicate a water main (sewer) crosses the red line site boundary
(officer note — this relates to the wider Hungate site and sewers follow roads rather
than the land where block H is proposed). The presence of the main may affect the
layout and therefore is a material consideration. The matter can be dealt with by a
condition to protect the water main at the southern end of the proposed
development. The location of the main will require determining by survey and trial
hole by the developer prior to any construction work and a suitable standoff of 3m to
the centre line of the main, and any associated fittings, maintained.

SAFER YORK PARTNERSHIP

3.31 The application follows the “Secured by Design” ethos of the previous blocks in
the Hungate Development site. It is to be commended, in particular the
compartmentation of the cycle stores and the layered approach to security.

CONSERVATION AREAS ADVISORY PANEL

3.32 It is proposed the building (original, now superseded scheme) will be six
storeys fronting Stonebow rising to eight storeys to the rear of the site. It was noted
that it would overreach the adjacent Hiscox building by two storeys. The Panel
considered that the proposal is overdevelopment, the building would overpower
Stonebow, creating a canyon in the street and should, in fact, step down in height
and reduce towards Stonebow. The character of the street would be adversely
affected.

GUILDHALL PLANNING PANEL
3.33 Object (to superseded scheme)

- Height.
Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 41

Lack of off road (and pavement) service areas.

Overdevelopment of site — lack of any green public areas and our dismay that
the green area for Hungate residents has shrunk in the course of the
developments.

Balcony railing may lead to unsightly windbreaks being added — glass may be
preferable.

4.0 REPRESENTATIONS

4.1 The application has been advertised via site notice, local press notice and
neighbour notification letter. 24 third party representations were received raising the
following comments / objections -

4.2 Height / Skyline

Eight storeys in height excessive and unsightly. These extra storeys would
impinge on the nearby streets, skyline and views in this City as a whole.

With the Conservation Area boundary along Stonebow, the proposed
development is a marked step up in height impacting City views and the skyline.
The pavement view of Stonebow is going to become characterless and bland.

4.3 Light / Overbearing / Loss of View / Privacy

The eighth floor will affect the quality of the light from the west which is the only
remaining aspect for the sun to reach St Johns Square and elevations facing
north. South facing properties are also disadvantaged by ever rising levels.

The proposed building has material differences to the sales and marketing scale
model that was a prime consideration to residents in their decision to buy
property at Hungate. Apartments were priced according to the view which would
be taken away if this application were to prevail and will have a negative impact
on value as well as quality of living, privacy and well-being.

Residents will have zero privacy and will be badly overlooked.

Recommend that the committee conduct a site meeting on Leetham Lane, from
which the loss of light (causing the planting to die), and the lack of privacy for
residents on either side of the Lane will be clear.

4.4 Lack of open space

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 42

- The roof top spaces miss the point that people need and feel better in more open
and social green spaces. Residents need more than tiny courtyards.

4.5 Sustainability

- The development could be more sustainable. Solar panels in place of unused
parking spaces could have contributed towards service charges and reduced the
developments carbon footprint.

4.6 Construction Process

- Concerns in relation to the level of noise, dust, construction techniques and
general traffic levels when construction work starts. There must be strict hours of
operation in force and a detailed dust management plan in operation.

4.7 Built as investments not homes

- Building new homes is needed but Hungate Marketing Suite are promoting
properties as investment properties for short term lets and private holiday homes.
50% of properties exist as long-term investments instead of homes. Delivering
long term community benefit is the most outcome for any project, ahead of short-
term financial gain.

4.8 Secured by Design / Security of Bellerby Court

- The changes to heights and open green public spaces are contrary to the current
urgent need to create welcoming and safer spaces for women. Making the
building higher will make the walkway between Block H and Bellerby Court darker
which poses a nighttime security issue unless it is well lit.

4.9 Maintenance of green roof

- The currently contracted estate gardeners have refused to maintain the green
roof in Block F due to health and safety issues. This would need to be addressed
for all Block H bio-diverse roofs.

4.10 Opening hours of commercial units

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 43

- The commercial units of Block H should have restrictions imposed on their
opening hours as this is a residential area. (officer note — condition 27
recommends restricted opening hours).

4.11 Pedestrianisation of Hungate (not material to this application as a subject of the
outline permission for the wider Hungate)

- Concerned that Hungate is to be pedestrianised as this will cause a build-up of
traffic trying to access the Block F car park and the Q Park car park, causing
congestion. On numerous occasions, visitors to the Q Park have led to cars
gueuing the whole of Garden Place and sometimes backing up onto The
Stonebow. Hungate should remain open to give access to the residents car park.
This also creates problems for emergency vehicle access.

- If Hungate is to be pedestrianised, measures need to be taken about the
pressure on Carmelite Street and lack of visibility. Traffic is forced into one lane
and the turn into Garden Place is blind and there is no pavement for pedestrians
on one side. There is no room for manoeuvre and cars have to reverse a long
way when they meet another head on. This area is well used by students and
parent parking at the beginning and end of term times.

Officer note - block H proposals have no material effect on Carmelite Street or
Garden Place which are adjacent block G which has planning permission (the
scheme for block G would have a footpath around and on-street car parking
within the highway).

4.12 Bin stores

- Bin stores are to be on the ground floor towards Dundas Street. Given
experience of how the bin stores are in Leetham House (and how they are
gathered at the back of the Moxy hotel ahead of collection), concern that this will
turn Dundas street into a "back ally" with large bins obstructing the street and
also result in people dumping items outside of the bin room doors.

- External access should be given to the bin stores for waste collections so
industrial waste receptacles are not left on the roadside as they are now with
Bellerby Court. Not only are they unsightly they smell and attract vermin,
especially being so closely located to the river Foss. (Officer note — Waste
services have confirmed they would access the largest bin store to collect bins.
They would require an access code).

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 44

The bin provision for existing apartments is inadequate; they habitually overflow
before each collection date. Stating that large amounts of waste, and bulky
waste, should be taken to a council tip does not result in compliance. The
development should provide around 50% more bins than would be the case for a
residential street, provide bins for large items such as mattresses.

(Officer note — condition 33 requires management of bins so they are not left on
the highway following waste collection).

4.13 Electric charging points

The developer should be required to provide an adequate number of EV charging
points that are available to all residents in the Hungate development, both
existing and proposed.

4.14 Service vehicles / Dundas Street congestion

The proposed plan allows for a couple of small lay-bys on Dundas Street for
refuse collection and the car rental scheme. This is insufficient as Dundas
Street's current congestion at times will only increase with the addition of a new
block. The proposed changes to the width of The Stonebow may also impact the
traffic flow if reasonable accommodation is not available.

4.15 Amount of commercial space

The area of commercial space appears high in the light of an increasing trend
towards empty retail units across the City. The proposed broad permitted usage,
Class E and F2, could have a detrimental effect on the area. Impact of
commercial traffic appears to have been excluded from the planning
assumptions.

4.16 Cycle Parking

Experience from Leetham House is that cycle parking will be over-subscribed
and that one space per apartment is just not enough. There is no provision for
any additional publicly cycle parking on the Hungate site, leaving the few cycle
spaces outside Bellerby Court to service the whole of the Hungate site. Officer
note — there are 6 visitor spaces for this block in the courtyard.

4.17 Traffic on Stonebow

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 45

Combining the existing heavy volume of traffic plus the impact of the additional
residents, will further increase noise, vibrations and volume of traffic along the
soon to be narrowed Stonebow. Calming measures and / or appropriate speed
restrictions are needed.

4.18 Parking Issues

The multi-storey car park is sparsely occupied due to inflated prices.

The developers cannot claim that there is "spare car parking capacity". Parking
space have been offered for purchase to those originally buying off-plan. If the
original purchaser declined to buy, then these spaces have been left empty (and
held by the developers). There are currently 44 spaces underneath Phase One
which are not available for sale to residents. The "lack of demand" for parking is
then used by the developers to remove the need for more parking (and the cost
of basement work).

The plan to allocate 48 spaces to cater for the 226 units planned for Block H is
risible, when demand exists for existing spaces, but no spaces are made
available to supply that demand. It is also not realistic to imagine that so many
residents will abandon car ownership. One Car Club car parked on Dundas
Street will not resolve the issue. The result will be empty units inevitably then
used for tourist / Air BnB type alternatives.

There is no visitor parking on site, and no disabled parking available (the marked
bays are arbitrary and have been assigned to properties rather than kept free for
disabled visitors) so there is no general disabled parking provision for residents
within the development. As the nearest public parking is some way away from the
entrances to the buildings, it is very difficult for disabled visitors to access the
buildings at all. ( Officer note - the parking bays along Dundas Street are marked
as disabled parking spaces).

4.19 Impact on residents of Peasholme Court / Stonebow

Concerned at who can trade in the commercial space and what noise, smells and
traffic that may potentially bring. We would object to a fast-food takeaway
particularly if they are to open late in terms of increased volume of people, noise
and smells.

Concern regarding advertisements and illumination in commercial units,
especially at night with regards to light pollution.

Concerns in relation to the drop-off zones as without any restrictions / hours of

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 46

operation, there could be lorries / traffic outside our neighbouring property at all
times.

The frontage onto Stonebow appears to be double the height of the residential
buildings directly opposite. Concerned that the block will dramatically reduce the
natural light on the ground, first and second floors of property. Rights of light
assessments and assess impact on natural daylight to occupants of Peasholme
Court are required.

The proposed building appears to be closer than the existing marketing suite and
therefore concerns of overlooking into our property. Ask that the balconies be
reduced / omitted and redesigned as Juliet balconies and consideration given to
the use of opaque glass.

Object to the Level 5 roof terrace due to impact on privacy and reasons of noise /
nuisance. Needs to be management procedures to ensure area can only be
used at certain times of the day and that there is an agreed noise rating at certain
points on Stonebow that cannot be exceeded. Will be difficult to control.
Concerned in relation to noise and privacy issues if the green roofs at level 6
would be made available to residents.

4.20 Wind tunnel

Council should undertake a wind speed assessment to ensure Stonebow will not
end up being a wind tunnel.

4.21 Additional points raised further to receipt of revised plans -

Statement within the Revised Travel Plan that any resident who purchases a
parking space can use the electric charging points is inaccurate. As these spaces
have been sold to specific residents as their own private space. Lendlease
should make them communal spaces and would also ask that electrical supply
charging infrastructure is put in so that existing parking space owners can install
their own chargers.

Acknowledge that Lendlease have acted on the various concerns about security
in the Bellerby Court car park and access into the courtyard from the car park is
now fob only.

Encouraging to see a reduction to seven floors, this should be decreased to the
original six storeys. The extension of the proposed level 6 along Dundas Street
Is likely to also restrict light, so this too is unwelcome. The original application
was for 169 units so whilst acknowledging the reduction from 230 to 221, the
proposal is still an increase of 52 units (31%).

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 47

- The managing agent will have to bring 68 bins out onto Dundas Street every
week on the day prior to bin collection, creating a line of bins of around 70m long,
creating a visual intrusion. The bin men will probably not be overly tidy in
replacing the bins to the Collection Point, and, after the bin collection, the
emptied bins will need to be returned to the store. So, there will be 68 bins out on
Dundas Street for two days every week. This is not acceptable for many
environmental reasons. Propose that the swing doors are replaced by roller
shutters and that the bin men return the bins directly to the bin store.

5.0 APPRAISAL

KEY ISSUES

5.1 The key issues are as follows -

- Principle of development

- Housing (Density and Mix)

- Design and External Appearance (layout, design, height and massing)
- Impact on Heritage Assets (setting to Conservation Area / nearby Listed
- Buildings and Archaeology)

- Landscaping

- Ecology

- Impact on Residential Amenity

- Highways

- Flood Risk and Drainage

- Sustainable design and construction

- Planning Obligations (Education, Open Space, Affordable Housing)

PRINCIPLE OF DEVELOPMENT

5.2  Policy H1 of the DLP 2018, identifies the Hungate site as a Strategic Housing
Site (reference ST32). Policy SS17 for the strategic allocation requires that in
addition to complying with Local Plan policies, Hungate/ST32 must be of the highest
guality which adds to the vitality and viability of the city centre, is safe and secure,
and which promotes sustainable development. Priority should be given to
pedestrians, people with mobility impairments, cyclists and public transport. The
background text states when fully complete the Hungate development will provide
around 1,050 new city centre apartments together with commercial and community
space, as well as high quality public spaces and landscaping.

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 48

5.3 The site is in the city centre as defined on the DLP 2018 proposals maps.
Policy SS3: York city centre advises that the city centre is the economic, social and
cultural heart of York. The policy advises that any retail use outside the primary
shopping area be subject to the sequential and impact tests apply (other class E /
commercial uses are acceptable in principle). It goes on to state that a principle of
the policy is to —

- Enhance the gateway streets (the Stonebow / Peasholme Green being one of
these) leading into the city centre to give a better sense of arrival.

- Retain and add to the city centre’s retail offer and retain and strengthen
independent shops.

- Provide community and recreational facilities to encourage healthy, active
lifestyles.

5.4 The composition of uses; the most practical amount of commercial /
community and communal uses at ground floor level and residential above are
compliant with strategic policies SS3 for the city centre and SS17 for Hungate. The
variation from previous applications at Hungate to omit basement car parking is
wholly compliant with policy SS17 which requires a scheme that promotes
sustainable development and encourages sustainable modes of travel. Itis also
aligned with policy SS1: Delivering Sustainable Growth for York in respect of the
spatial principle of preventing unacceptable levels of congestion, pollution and/or air
quality.

HOUSING DENSITY

5.5 The application site falls within the city centre as identified in the DLP 2018.
Policy H2: Density of Residential Development states that housing developments
within the city centre will be expected to achieve a net density of 100 units per
hectare. Policy H2 also states that higher density will be supported for sites within
400m of a high frequency public transport corridor, where it complies with other plan
objectives. NPPF paragraph 125 states “planning policies and decisions should
promote an effective use of land in meeting the need for homes and other uses,
while safeguarding and improving the environment and ensuring safe and healthy
living conditions. Strategic policies should set out a clear strategy for
accommodating objectively assessed needs, in a way that makes as much use as
possible of previously-developed or ‘brownfield’ land”.

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 49

5.6 221 residential units are proposed on a site approximately 0.5ha in size,
equating to a density of 442 dwellings per hectare. The location of the site and its
proximity to infrastructure and transport links means it is one where the DLP 2018
policies and the NPPF support a higher density, making optimal use of the site. The
density is also broadly consistent with the density of development at the Hungate
site. The principle of high density is appropriate in this location. Whether the
amount of development proposed is acceptable for the site, considering local
character, the setting of heritage assets, the need to promote regeneration and the
importance of good design, is assessed in the following sections.

HOUSING MIX

5.7 221 residential units are proposed consisting of 5No. 1 bed studios (2.3%),
147No. 1 bedroomed apartments (66.5%), 68No. 2 bedroomed apartments (30.7%)
and 1No. 3 bedroomed apartment (0.5%).

5.8 DLP 2018 Policy H3 states that the Council will expect developers to provide
housing solutions that contribute to meeting York’s housing needs, as identified in
the latest Local Housing Needs Assessment (LHNA) and in any other appropriate
local evidence. New residential development should therefore maintain, provide or
contribute to a mix of housing tenures, types and sizes to help support the creation
of mixed, balanced and inclusive communities. Policy H3 is consistent with the
NPPF to use the Local Housing Needs Assessment (LHNA) to inform judgements
on appropriate mix of housing and the LHNA is material to decision making.

5.9 The scheme generally provides 1 and 2 bed apartments. The LHNA identifies
most need for 2 and 3 bedroom sized houses although it recognises that the range
of housing delivered will vary by site and is influenced by site-specific
circumstances. The LHNA does not discuss need for the build to rent sector, which
is the tenure type in this scheme. The proposed housing mix is similar to that
previously approved within other blocks across the Hungate site. This site is within
an urban context within the city centre and therefore is compatible with higher
density living and accordingly it will be apartment led. Delivering higher density
apartment living on this site can, to a degree, be balanced with the provision of a
suitable proportion of 3-bed homes on the strategic housing sites identified in the
plan, out of the city centre, where such a development type (and lower densities) is
more appropriate within its setting. The scheme provides much needed housing in
an appropriate sustainable location and is beneficial to the vitality and viability of the

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 50

city centre. The housing mix proposed is reasonable for this urban site and regarded
to be policy compliant overall.

DESIGN AND EXTERNAL APPEARANCE

5.10 The assessment of design takes into account the local context, the impact on
heritage assets and the form and function of the scheme. The following sections of
the DLP 2018 and NPPF are relevant in this respect.

- In relation to previously-developed land, the NPPF advises that policies should
promote an effective use of land, while safeguarding and improving the
environment and ensuring safe and healthy living conditions (paragraph 125).

- Paragraph 135 of the NPPF states that planning decisions should aim to ensure
that developments will function well and add to the overall quality of an area, be
visually attractive through good architecture, layout and appropriate landscaping,
be sympathetic to local character and history, establish a strong sense of place,
optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate
amount and mix of development (including green and other public space),
support local facilities and transport networks, and create safe, inclusive and
accessible environments.

5.11 Policy D1 (Placemaking) of the DLP 2018 advises that schemes will be
supported where they improve poor existing urban and natural environments,
enhance York’s special qualities, and better reveal the significances of the historic
environment.

Site Layout

5.12 The building is formed around a central landscaped residents’ courtyard and
would sit within the same general footprint as previously approved for Block H
(17/02019/0QUTM).

5.13 This revised scheme proposes 329m2 commercial floorspace within Use Class
E (commercial, business and service) and F2 (local community use) at ground floor
level along Stonebow, which is less than the previously consented amount of
commercial floorspace. Floorspace detailed as commercial in the previous
application has been re-allocated to residential amenity space, to reflect the Built to
Rent model now proposed for this block. Concentrating the commercial and
communal uses, with associated active frontage, on the Stonebow elevation is an

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 51

appropriate design response due to the amount of activity and character of the
street. Away from the Stonebow elevation land uses are all associated with
residential use of the building.

5.14 Service activity (plant/cycle parking provision/refuse) is at ground floor. It is
acknowledged that ground floors in general should maximise positive street
activity/use rather than accommodate "dead" service uses which, in large amounts,
can have a negative impact on the character of the ground floor. However
requirements for ancillary bin and cycle storage are significant and these have to be
convenient to use, and safe and the internal courtyard provides valuable external
amenity space for residents and direct access from apartments is beneficial. The
scheme provides an appropriate balance between desires to animate the street,
especially Stonebow and St John’s Square (it does so with communal / commercial
spaces and dwellings with front doors accessed from the street), provide amenity for
residents and ensure a functional development overall.

Architectural Design

5.15 The scheme in its articulation, scale, massing and composition of uses adheres
to the NPPF guidance in paragraph 135; being sympathetic of to the vernacular of
the wider Hungate development.

5.16 Although a single block, the elevational treatment for Block H has been
designed to continue the varied building typologies and character of the broader
Hungate site. The Stonebow elevation, as a main elevation facing a busy
commercial road, follows similar principles to that of civic building facades that are
characterised by strong horizontal elements with a consistent height. The elevations
on Hungate and Dundas Street, being secondary elevations, form a tighter grain and
are characterised by verticality and varied heights and external wall finishes. The
elevation on St Johns Square, being a main elevation but facing a pedestrianised
area, is a mixture of the two design principles and follows the architectural language
of buildings around squares.

5.17 As with other blocks, the design follows an established approach of building in
brick with aluminium windows and metal balconies. The palette of materials
comprises red multi facing brick, brown facing brick and buff / cream coloured brick
for the internal courtyard. Additional features include the use of local stone to mark
the entrance to the courtyard, bronze/grey vertical metal cladding on the top storey,
dark grey windows and balconies with perforated metal screens. Projecting

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 52
balconies are used to help articulate the grain of the plot widths, add visual interest
and provide useable external amenity space for residents and have been

encouraged by the Council’'s Design & Conservation team.

Massing and Height

5.18 Given its relationship to the impact on heritage assets, consideration to the
impact on townscape and views from the massing and height of the proposed
buildings is provided in the following section regarding heritage assets.

IMPACT ON DESIGNATED HERITAGE ASSETS

5.19 The application site fronts on to the Stonebow. It is not within a Conservation
Area but borders Character Area 8 (Aldwark) of the York Central Historic Core
Conservation Area Appraisal (YCHCCAA). Character area 8 is ancient in origin with
a complex and tight network of streets bisected by the mid-20" century Stonebow
relief road beyond which lies Hungate. Immediately opposite the site, Stonebow is
fronted by modern, low buildings but in close proximity, there are multiple listed
buildings including early Georgian houses of St Saviourgate (Grade Il or [I*), Lady
Hewley’s Almshouses (Grade Il), Peasholme House (Grade 11*) and St Anthonys
Hall (Grade I). Due to the close proximity of these listed buildings, the site of Block H
is considered the most sensitive of all the plots within the Hungate Masterplan. The
two existing larger 20" century office blocks in the Aldwark area are identified as
detractors in the appraisal.

5.20 In accordance with section 72 of the Planning (Listed Building and
Conservation Area) Act 1990, the Local Planning Authority must pay special
attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance
of the Conservation Area in exercising its planning duties. Section 66 of the same
Act requires the Local Planning Authority to have regard to preserving the setting of
Listed Buildings or any features of special architectural or historic interest it
possesses.

5.21 The legislative requirements of Sections 66 and 72 are in addition to
government policy contained in Section 16 of the NPPF. The NPPF states that when
considering the impact of a proposed development on the significance of a
designated heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset's conservation.
The more important the asset, the greater the weight should be. Where a
development proposal would lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 53

the asset, this harm should be weighed against public benefits of the proposal.
Policy D4 of DLP 2018 advises that harm to buildings, open spaces, trees, views or
other elements which make a positive contribution to a conservation area will be
permitted only where this is outweighed by the public benefits of the proposal.

5.22 Approved scheme 15/01709/0OUTM included a parameter plan of maximum
building heights, which allowed a massing of 5 and 6 storey, stepping up to 7 storey
on the St John’s Square side of the building. This building scale, due to the width
and height of the block facing The Stonebow, was deemed to cause a low level of
harm to the setting of the conservation area.

5.23 The proposed building maintains the previously approved massing fronting The
Stonebow. Since submission, revised plans have been issued which remove the
initially proposed 8" storey element. This amendment has addressed officer
concerns in relation to the impact on the setting of historic city roofscapes as seen
from important elevated views such as the Minster and Cliffords Tower.

5.24 The revised scheme is now broadly in accordance with the height limits and
floor areas of the permitted outline scheme (15/01709/0UTM) with the key
differences relating to an extension of approximately 6 metres of the two wings at
seventh floor and the removal, in places, of the slight set back of the permitted
scheme at this level. Whilst these increases would be visible, their location towards
the centre of the development would ensure that the visual impact resulting from the
revisions relate to streets that form part of the Hungate masterplan development
area ensuring that there would be no impact on the character and appearance of the
conservation area or to the setting of listed buildings from this aspect of the scheme.

5.25 With reference to the Stonebow elevation, when assessing the 2015 outline
application, officers considered that by virtue of the width and height of the block
(which was taller than the first outline permission for the entire Hungate site), some
harm would be caused to the setting of the conservation area. The affected context
was considered Stonebow itself (compared to the scale and type of buildings
opposite and in the immediate vicinity) rather than longer views to and from
designated historic assets, which were not considered to be materially affected.
The principle of the massing proposed along Stonebow was accepted in the 2015
scheme. Officers balanced the negative impact of the massing of the Stonebow
elevation with other positive aspects such as the provision of much needed housing,
in a sustainable location that would benefit the vitality and viability of the city centre
and provision of an active frontage along The Stonebow. The massing was

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 54

accepted on the basis that the plans should represent the absolute maximum
massing of the Stonebow elevation.

5.26 The building massing for the Stonebow elevation as proposed in this
application for Block H (part 5 / part 6 storeys) is within the “maximum heights”
parameter granted consent under the previous hybrid permission (15/01709/FULM).
The harm to the setting of the adjacent Conservation Area, due to the massing of
the Stonebow elevation, is assessed as at the lower end of “less than substantial”.
The legal duty requires considerable importance and weight to be given to the
desirability of avoiding such harm. The NPPF also requires great weight to be given
to such harm in the planning balance, despite it being minor. The public benefits of
the scheme - the provision of much needed housing in a sustainable location; re-use
of previously developed land that has a negative effect on the townscape and
provision of a neighbourhood which promotes walking and cycling; the associated
benefit to the vitality and viability of the city centre through increasing its residential
population and the provision of an active frontage along The Stonebow are all
benefits aligned with strategic policies SS1: Delivering Sustainable Growth for York
(in particular in respect of the spatial principle of preventing unacceptable levels of
congestion, pollution and/or air quality), SS3 for the city centre and SS17 for
Hungate and are deemed to outweigh the identified harm.

ARCHAEOLOGY

5.27 Substantial archaeological investigations have been carried out in association
with the Hungate development revealing regionally and locally significant
archaeological features and deposits including Roman and medieval burials. These
archaeological features and deposits are undesignated heritage assets that lie
within the designated Area of Archaeological Importance.

5.28 Paragraph 216 of the NPPF requires the effect of an application on the
significance of a non-designated heritage asset to be taken into account in
determining an application. DLP 2018 Policies D6 and D7 reflect national planning
guidance and require an understanding of the archaeology affected to avoid
substantial harm (preserve 95% of deposits) or where there would be harm,
undertake adequate mitigation.

5.29 Previous works have seen the removal of the large majority of the
archaeological resource within the curtilage of Block H in two phases. However, an
apron of unexcavated archaeology (1-3m) remains in-situ around the perimeter of

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 55

the site. This was left in place for health and safety reasons during the main
excavations. The southern extent for the current Block H proposal encroaches into
Palmer Lane which has also not been excavated. It is expected that the remaining
archaeology will contain elements of the post-medieval Cordwainers Hall, 10"
century domestic buildings and Roman burials.

5.30 To mitigate against the impact on the remaining archaeology, there will be a
requirement for a watching brief and excavation where relevant (on human remains
and 10™ century archaeology) during ground reduction / enabling works related to
the piling areas. A watching brief will also be required during any additional ground
disturbing works in non-excavated areas and along the edge of the site fronting onto
St John’s Square. St John's Square has been designed to ensure preservation in-
situ of the medieval remains of St John the Baptist Church and graveyard.

5.31 The proposal will cause harm to locally significant archaeological resources.
This harm is considered to be less than substantial, outweighed by the economic
and social benefits of the development in terms of the provision of new housing and
the opportunity it presents for regeneration in the area, and has been mitigated by
the measures detailed in the Written Scheme of Investigation (WSI), including the
provision of a record, archive and body of knowledge that will improve
understanding of the development of this site. In the context of Paragraph 211 of
the NPPF, the ability to record evidence has been considered as part of the planning
balance in deciding whether the harm should be permitted but has not been a
decisive factor. The proposals therefore remain in accordance with local and
national planning policies including paragraph 216 of the NPPF and DLP 2018
Policies D6 and D7.

LANDSCAPING / ECOLOGY

5.32 Policy D2 (Landscape and Setting) of the DLP 2018 states that proposals will
be encouraged and supported where they conserve and enhance landscape quality
and character. The scheme is compliant with policy D2. The key elements of the
landscaping proposals are the communal courtyard garden and communal terrace.
The courtyard for Block H is one of the largest courtyards on the Hungate
development measuring approximately 21m x 32m with its length on the north to
south axis such that more sunlight will reach the courtyard at ground floor level. It
would provide a private leisure space for residents use and would include private
terraced areas, defined by clipped formal hedgerows, a central lawned area, play
equipment with a good range of activities and seating located around the perimeter

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 56

of the play space. The spaces will be greened with a good depth, range, and scale
of planting.

5.33 The communal terrace at the fifth-floor level would provide an additional
outdoor amenity space accessed from adjacent block corridors. The main area will
be decked and defined by planting in containers, bench seating and picnic tables
would be provided. Green roof areas will be provided on levels 5 to 8.

5.34 At street level, the landscape areas between the building and the pavement
have been designed to provide defensible planting between the private accesses
and ground floor units. Wall shrubs will be used to green the step structures with
hedging along the St Johns Square elevations and 3 street trees (with appropriate
details provided of tree pits) are detailed to the Stonebow.

5.35 The recommendations detailed within the ecological appraisal submitted with
the application will have a beneficial impact on habitats and biodiversity in providing
ecological enhancement. These recommendations will be adhered to through
conditions such as the requirement for a Landscape Ecological Management Plan
(LEMP) which will detail how biodiversity enhancements such as the installation of
bird nesting features and the provision of native planting, will be installed, managed
and maintained in this respect the scheme is compliant with NPPF paragraph 187 in
respect of biodiversity.

IMPACT ON RESIDENTIAL AMENITY

5.36 The NPPF (paragraph 135) states that developments should create places that
are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and well-being, with a
high standard of amenity for existing and future users; and where crime and
disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life or community
cohesion and resilience. The National Design guide advises external spaces are
designed to respond to local character, as appropriate solutions will vary by the
context, for example whether it is a town centre or suburb. It advises well-designed
spaces are social spaces which are safe and secure and well-overlooked.

5.37 The site is within the defined city centre, where mixed use schemes and
various commercial developments, including night-time uses are appropriate in
principle; as defined in both national and local policy. With regards to town centres,
NPPF policy is based on ensuring vitality and the need for ‘town centre uses’ to be
accommodated. The strategic allocation for Hungate explains that the site will

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 57

accommodate commercial and community uses. The policy context is a material
consideration when assessing the impact on surrounding residential uses.

5.38 The size of the apartments proposed within Block H is in line with previous
phases across the Hungate development site. With respects to external public /
private amenity space, 114 of the 221 apartments have either a balcony or terrace
and 99 have a Juliette balcony. All residents have access to the central landscaped
courtyard and residents lounge with terrace on the 6™ floor (Level 5); spaces that
are safe and accessible to all. There is also an external amenity space for residents
provided at ground floor at the southern corner facing St Johns Square. Including
both external and internal space there is 1,300 sgm of residential amenity space
provided within the block, this equates to circa 6 sgm residential communal space
per apartment (not including private amenity space provided by balconies where
applicable). The amount and design of amenity space is regarded appropriate in
this context when applying NPPF paragraph 135.

5.39 Conditions are proposed to reasonably control activity which can cause noise
and to mitigate the impact of commercial units on nearby residential units. The
conditions would restrict hours of operation for the commercial units and approve
noise from plant and machinery and from externally generated noise. Public
protection also recommended conditions regarding noise between commercial and
residential premises and external lighting. Such conditions were not regarded
necessary because noise between uses is a Building Regulations matter and
external lighting in such an urban setting would not unduly affect amenity.

5.40 Other issues raised through the consultation process by residents of
Peasholme Court (on the opposite side of The Stonebow) and existing residents
within the Hungate development relate to loss of daylight, loss of privacy, the impact
on amenity from the use of the outside terrace(s) and the impact of the construction
process. In terms of overlooking and reduced natural light, the scheme has been
amended to remove the eighth storey element. The revised proposal is no higher
than the massing of the previously consented scheme with the exception of a
relatively small increase in the extent of the seventh storey along Hungate and
Dundas Street (i.e facing towards the Hiscox building and the plot of unbuilt block
G); building heights are appropriate to the context and are therefore NPPF
compliant in respect of making effective use of land and achieving well-designed
places. The provision of external amenity space is appropriate for the type of
development proposed and the city centre location; such amenities are promoted by
National Design Guidance.

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 58

5.41 When considered in the context of the overall architectural design of the block,
the revisions to the extent of the 7" floor are acceptable and this amended scheme
would not have a materially noticeable effect in terms of the impact on daylight /
sunlight and sense of over enclosure of main open spaces, or loss of privacy to
nearby residents when compared to permitted scheme (15/01709/0UTM).
Furthermore, as Block H is located to the north of Block F and St Johns Square and
building heights are not increasing in this area, there will be no material impact on
sunlight into the café in Block F and St Johns Square beyond that of the previously
approved scheme.

5.42 A Construction Environment Management Plan (CEMP) condition for
minimising the creation of noise, vibration and dust during the demolition, site
preparation and construction phases of the development, would be a requirement of
the decision.

5.43 In relation to security and designing out crime, Safer York Partnership (SYP)
note that the application follows the “Secured by Design” ethos of the previous
blocks in the Hungate development and is to be commended, in particular for the
compartmentation of the cycle stores and the layered approach to security. The
agent has responded to concerns raised by residents of Block F that car owners
from Block H will have unlimited access through their central communal area and
confirm that they are in the process of implementing fob access to the Block F
courtyard so that it remains accessible to Block F residents only.

HIGHWAYS AND ACCESS

5.44 Paragraph 110 of the NPPF advises that significant development should be
focused on locations which are or can be made sustainable, through limiting the
need to travel and offering a genuine choice of transport modes. DLP 2018 policy T1
(Sustainable Access) similarly supports development where it minimises the need to
travel and maximises the use of more sustainable modes of transport.

5.45 The application is supported by a Transport Assessment which demonstrates
that the proposed development can be safely accessed by pedestrians, cyclists,
vehicles and residents with limited mobility. The site is in a sustainable location
close to the city centre and other local facilities and is well served by high frequency
public transport routes. To promote and incentivise sustainable travel whilst also
helping to reduce dependence on the private car, Highway Officers are seeking a

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 59

contribution towards sustainable travel incentives (£400 per unit towards bus / cycle
measures and £200 per unit to promote the car club). A £200 per dwelling
contribution to encourage first occupants to use the car club is reasonable given the
scheme is a low car development; aligned with the strategic allocation and the
Councils aspirations for promoting sustainable travel, health and wellbeing, reducing
pollution and addressing issues of air quality and the NPPF environmental
objectives. Other contributions are considered not necessary in this location and not
necessary to mitigate the impacts of the scheme.

Parking Provision

5.46 One of the key revisions to the outline parameters approved under
15/01709/0OUTM is the removal of the basement car park in Block H. Instead, 48 car
spaces (which equates to 22% provision) located within the basement beneath
Blocks A, B and C and the multi storey car park that forms part of Block F, will be
allocated to residents of Block H from spare parking capacity which remains within
the earlier phases of the Hungate scheme.

5.47 In response to residents questioning the notion of there being “spare capacity”
and raising concerns that spaces are being held back rather than being leased for
sale, the agent states -

“The owners of the occupied blocks have all previously been provided with the
opportunity to purchase a parking space for their property. Those who are renting
apartments are not able to purchase parking spaces and would need to rent an
apartment that comes with parking if a space is required. Spare parking capacity
across the site has been identified and has now been allocated to each of the
remaining blocks; 136 spaces remain available in Blocks A, B, C and F for the 613
units of Blocks G, D and H. The allocation of the 48 parking spaces to Block H
utilises the spare parking capacity that remains within the earlier phases of the
development”.

5.48 The scheme is for apartments within the inner ring road and other such
developments have been permitted, and historically exist, with low or zero car
parking provision; this is consistent with the draft local plan vision and development
principles in respect of reduction carbon emissions and delivering a fundamental
shift in travel patterns and the strategic policy for the Hungate site. A contribution to
promote the car club is reasonable in this case. Any further off-site parking
management measures (within 1km of the site) would not be reasonable, nor

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 60
necessary and could not evidentially be directly related to the development in such a
city centre location. Also there are already various traffic restrictions and

management measures in the locality.

Accessible Parking / Electric Vehicle Charging

5.49 The applicants advise that 2 of the 48 spaces earmarked for the site would be
accessible. A condition (condition 35) is proposed to ensure at least 3 of the parking
spaces to be allocated to block H are for disabled parking (which would exceed 5%
of the provision).

5.50 The applicant has provided eight electric vehicle recharge points within Block F
and in doing so has complied with the relevant condition attached to the outline

approval. No further car parking spaces are proposed in this application.

Cycle parking

5.51 Cycle parking at a rate of 1 space per apartment is proposed, with access from
the courtyard into 4 separate stores. The courtyard has access control, so this
arrangement is beneficial as an extra layer of security. There are Sheffield type
stands with an upper tier racking system above (the racking system is gas assisted
which makes use easier). The provision includes 7 accessible parking spaces and
washing / maintenance facilities. There are 6 spaces in the courtyard which could
be used for visitors. These measures encourage frequent use of cycling as a
transport option, while retaining appropriate levels of security and safety in line with
the City of York Council’'s Cycle Parking Guidance v3 (Feb 2017). Whilst the
amount of provision does not meet the LTN1/20 target of 1 cycle space per bedroom
the provision is regarded acceptable in terms of promoting sustainable travel in this
particular location (the Travel Plan for the site advises it expects the majority of trips
will be on foot due to the location). The LTN 1/20 targets are recommendations
only. 1 space per dwelling is considered reasonable given the location, the type of
apartments proposed and taking into account what has been provided throughout
the Hungate development. A condition is proposed for extra cycle parking spaces if
the ongoing Travel Plan identifies demand (at the expense of car parking).

Pedestrianisation of Hungate

5.52 In relation to the pedestrianisation of Hungate in terms of traffic congestion and
safety issues in relation to the lack of visibility on Carmelite Street; this application

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 61

relates solely to Block H; therefore these issues are outside the scope of this
application.

5.53 The strategic allocation for Hungate explains that priority should be given to
pedestrians, people with mobility impairments, cyclists and public transport. Any
requests for extra infrastructure to encourage private car travel are contrary to the
strategic allocation and generally the DLP 2018 proposals for sustainable growth.

Servicing and Waste Strateqy

5.54 A loading / unloading bay is now proposed on Dundas Street which can be
used for deliveries and taxi loading / unloading. No concerns have been raised by
Highway Officers.

5.55 In terms of the waste strategy, the largest store has direct access from Dundas
Street. Two smaller stores are accessed via the courtyard. The managing agent
will move bins (once full) from the smaller stores to the communal refuse store on
Dundas Street and replace with empty ones. The calculation for each type of waste
and number of bins required has been approved by Council Waste Officers. The
applicants propose that in line with the management structure of adjacent buildings,
on an agreed day with the Council, the managing agent would place bins on Dundas
Street and store in an agreed location for collection (a new service bay will be
created on Dundas Street). Once emptied, the managing agent will return the bins
to the respective bin stores. Alternatively, however, the Council’s Waste Services
have advised they would collect bins from the larger store facing Dundas Street.
Either option would be acceptable in planning terms and an informative is proposed
(following condition 33) to suggest the developer implements a strategy whereby
bins are within the public realm for the least possible time.

FLOOD RISK

5.56 Overall the scheme accords with NPPF section 14: Meeting the challenge of
climate change, flooding and coastal change. Paragraph 170 of the NPPF states
that inappropriate development in areas at risk of flooding should be avoided by
directing development away from areas at highest risk. Where development is
necessary in such areas, the development should be made safe for its lifetime
without increasing flood risk elsewhere. Policy ENV4 of the DLP 2018 reflects the
advice of the NPPF.

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 62

5.57 As the application site is located entirely within Flood Zone 3a, a Sequential
Test and, if applicable, the Exception Test are required. This is because whilst the
site is allocated for development, the DLP 2018 is not yet adopted. A Sequential
Test has been undertaken (and passed) which concludes that there are no
alternative sites within lower flood risk zones on which to deliver this development
opportunity. The site has an allocation for housing in the DLP 2108 and is
previously developed land within a sustainable location. Development of the site
has been determined as being most appropriate to meet the objectives of the DLP
2018 and adhere to the overarching definitions of sustainable development in the
NPPF.

5.58 The development will be reasonably safe during its lifetime. It can be occupied
safely in the event of fluvial flooding, and there is low risk from all other sources of
flooding. There is no increased flood risk elsewhere. The Environment Agency
raises no objections to the proposal subject to a condition requiring compliance with
the submitted Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) and subsequent FRA addendum.

DRAINAGE

5.59 The NPPF requires that suitable drainage strategies are developed for sites, so
there is no increase in flood risk elsewhere. DLP 2018 Policy ENV5 (Sustainable

Drainage) advise discharge from new developments should not exceed the capacity
of receptors and water run-off should, in relation to existing runoff rates, be reduced.

5.60 The surface water strategy includes measures to store rainfall and reduce the
rate of run off from the site by 30% compared to the pre-development run off rate.
Surface water attenuation would be provided through use of permeable paving and
a geocellular attenuation tank and the proposed SuDS scheme includes the
provision of green / biodiverse roofs. Yorkshire Water and the Council's Flood Risk
Management Team raise no objections subject to conditions to cover permitted
surface water discharge rates and the details of the drainage proposals. The
development would accord with the provisions of the NPPF and Policy ENV5 of the
DLP 2018.

SUSTAINABLE DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION

5.61 Policy CC2 of the DLP 2018 states this development should achieve on-site
carbon emissions reduction of a minimum of 31% over and above the requirements
of Building Regulations Part L (2013), of which at least 19 % should come from

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 63

energy efficiency measures; and a water consumption rate of 110 litres per person
per day (calculated as per Part G of the Building Regulations). Pending anticipated
changes to Building Regulations, it should further aim to achieve up to a 75%
reduction in carbon emissions over and above the requirements of Building
Regulations Part L (2013) unless it is demonstrated that such reductions would not
be feasible or viable. Any higher level of reductions required through Building
Regulations or other legislation will supersede the above requirements. A condition
IS proposed to secure policy compliance.

PLANNING OBLIGATIONS

5.62 Policy DM1 of the DLP 2018 states that the Council will seek contributions from
developers to ensure that the necessary infrastructure is in place to support future
development in York.

Education

5.63 Paragraph 100 of the NPPF states that it is important that a sufficient choice of
school places is available to meet the needs of existing and new communities. Local
planning authorities should take a proactive, positive, and collaborative approach to
meeting this requirement. Policy ED6 of the 2018 DLP states that given the scale
and location of future housing development and projected demographic changes in
birth rates, the local plan must ensure there are sufficient modern early years and
childcare, primary and secondary education facilities across the city. The policy
seeks to provide the provision of sufficient modern education facilities to meet an
identified need.

5.64 Education have identified that the development would generate the need for 7
primary, 3 secondary and 9 pre-school places. A financial contribution of £381,994
would therefore be required under Policy ED6 of the DLP 2018. The identified
schools / projects are Fishergate, St Oswalds and Fulford School. The pre-school
provision contribution would be spent within 2.5km of the Hungate development.

5.65 The required contribution of £381,994 which is based on the 221 units to be
provided in Block H, is significantly greater than the contribution required at the time
of the 2015 hybrid application, which amounted to £66,809 and which related to the
residential units across all 4 remaining phases of the Hungate site (Blocks D, F, G
and H). This increase is in part due to the requirement for a contribution towards
pre-school places absent previously.

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 64

Open Space

5.66 Policy GI6 of the DLP 2018 requires all residential development to contribute to
the provision of open space for recreation and amenity. The precise type of on-site
provision required will depend on the size and location of the proposal and the
existing open space provision in the area. The site is within the Guildhall Ward
which has a surplus of parks and gardens but is deficient in natural / semi natural
space, amenity green space, children’s and young person’s facilities, outdoor space
and allotments based on the Open Space and Green Infrastructure Update
(September 2017).

5.67 Based on the number of dwellings and number of bedrooms proposed, the off-
site contributions required for amenity space, play provision and sports pitches
(totalling £142,744) would be spent on new play equipment for Navigation Road
(Rosemary Place), Glen Gardens or St Nicholas Fields with the amenity element of
the contribution spent on enhancements to open spaces around the City Walls,
Walmgate area or St Nicholas Fields. It has been identified that the Outdoor Sport
Provision Payment could contribute towards clubhouse and ancillary facility
improvements at Heworth Rugby Club, multi-use games area within Heworth
Without and / or improvements to Hull Road Park and Glen Gardens.

Affordable Housing

5.68 The national planning advice for the Build to Rent housing type is that
affordable housing should be in the form of affordable private rent homes. 20% is
described as a generally suitable benchmark for the proportion of affordable units
and affordable rent at least 20% less than market rent. The guidance requires that
the affordable units be provided at an agreed rate, in perpetuity, and controls over
eligibility detailed in S106 agreements. The build-to-rent operator manages the
“affordable” units in the same way as the remainder of the development.

5.69 Based on the developers expected rent rates, a suitable discount of 41.6%
(blended) has been agreed to enable the “affordable” units to be attainable to the
target market. The extent of the discount, and due to the level of affordable housing
agreed across the Hungate site, means that 22 affordable units would be provided
on-site.

Highways
Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 65

5.70 Paragraphs 109 to 118 of the NPPF requires that development should not have
an unacceptable impact on the transport network and should prioritise sustainable
travel modes. Policy T1 of the DLP 2018 supports the approach of the NPPF in
promoting the use of sustainable travel modes and minimising the need to travel.

5.71 To provide alternatives to private car travel a contribution is sought of £200 per
dwelling.

5.72 The above mentioned proposed s106 planning obligations are considered
compliant with NPPF paragraphs 56 to 58 and the relevant CIL regulations.

PUBLIC SECTOR EQUALITIES DUTY

5.73 Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 contains the Public Sector Equality Duty
(PSED) which requires public authorities, when exercising their functions, to have
due regard to the need to:

a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation, and any other conduct that is
prohibited by or under the Act,

b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it,

c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it.

5.74 Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between
persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not
share it involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to:

(a) remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic,

(b) take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it,

(c) encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to participate in
public life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is
disproportionately low.

5.75 The PSED does not specify a particular substantive outcome but ensures that
the decision made has been taken with “due regard” to its equality implications.

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 66

5.76 Officers have given due regard to the equality implications of the proposals in
making its recommendation. There is no indication or evidence (including from
consultation on this application) that any equality matters are raised that would
outweigh the material planning considerations.

6.0 CONCLUSION

6.1 This application seeks permission for revised proposals for Block H, which until
April 2021 benefited from an extant outline approval. The time for submitting the
reserved matters (of the extant approval) has expired. This proposal involves an
increase of 52 units with other changes to the previously approved design
parameters, the key ones being the removal of the basement car park and an
increase to the extent of the seventh floor; the scheme under consideration has
been submitted as a stand-alone, full application.

6.2 The building massing for the Stonebow elevation as proposed in this application
is within the “maximum heights” parameter granted consent under the original hybrid
permission and therefore a similar assessment of the impact on heritage assets has
been applied with the same conclusions reached. In terms of the massing for the
remaining parts of Block H, the revised scheme is broadly in accordance with the
height limits and floor areas of the permitted outline scheme with the difference
relating to a minor addition at seventh floor. Whilst this increase in the extent of the
seventh floor would be visible, its location towards the centre of the development
would ensure that the visual impact is not material.

6.3 The proposal, by virtue of the width and height of the Stonebow elevation, would
result in less than substantial harm (at the lower end) to the setting of the
Conservation Area. The excavation of an apron of unexcavated archaeology which
remains around the perimeter of the site would result in harm to non-designated
heritage assets. The identified harms are consistent with those identified previously
under permitted application 15/01709/FULM.

6.4 The Courts have held that when a local planning authority finds that a proposed
development would harm a heritage asset the authority must give considerable
importance and weight to the desirability of avoiding such harm to give effect to its
statutory duties under sections 66 and 72 of the 1990 Act. The harm is considered
“less than substantial”. The NPPF requires that where a development proposal

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 67

would lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage
asset, this harm should be weighed against public benefits of the proposal.

6.5 It is considered that the identified harm to heritage assets has been mitigated by
the measures detailed in the archaeology investigation and is outweighed by the
environmental, social and economic benefits associated with the provision of new
housing, for which there is identified need, and the sustainable regeneration of
previously developed land. The development and consequent increased local
population would bring regeneration and economic benefits to the city centre. As
set out in section 5, other identified potential harms to flood risk, highway safety,
visual and residential amenity and other environmental matters could be adequately
mitigated by conditions.

7.0 RECOMMENDATION:

That delegated authority be given to the Head of Planning and Development
Services to APPROVE the application subject to:

e The completion of a Section 106 Agreement to secure the following planning
obligations:

()  Affordable housing — 9.8% of Build to Rent units (a total of 21.7 rounded
up to 22) on-site to be discounted as follows —

1-bed x 15 units with a discount of 38%
2-bed x 7 units with a discount of 50%

(i)  Education - a contribution of £132,832 towards expansion at St Oswalds
and / or Fishergate Primary school, £78,378 to Fulford School and
£170,784 towards pre-school provision.

(i)  Off-site sports provision - Financial contribution of £61,983 towards
clubhouse and ancillary facility improvements at Heworth Rugby Club,
multi-use games area within Heworth Without and / or improvements to
Hull Road Park and Glen Gardens or other suitable sports project
identified at time of payment, within 15 - 20-minute walking distance or
within 20 minutes on public transport of the Development.

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 68

(iv) Off-site amenity and play space provision - Financial contribution of
£80,761 new play equipment for Navigation Road (Rosemary Place),
Glen Gardens or St Nicholas Fields with the amenity element of the
contribution spent on enhancements to open spaces around the City
Walls, Walmgate area or St Nicholas Fields.

(v) £200 per dwelling to promote car club use = £44,200

(vi) Monitoring fee £1,510.00 per item = £7,550

e The Head of Planning and Development Services be given delegated authority to

finalise the terms and details of the Section 106 Agreement.

e The Head of Planning and Development Services be given delegated authority to

determine the final detail of the following planning conditions:

1 TIME2 Development start within three years

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the

following plans and other submitted details:-

16156-HGH-WDN-D-0-DR-A-0701 PLO2 (Redline Boundary Plan)
16156-HGH-WDN-D-0-DR-A-0702 PLO3 (Proposed Site Plan)

16156-HGH-WDN-D-00-DR-A-1010 PLO11 (GA Plans Ground Floor)
16156-HGH-WDN-D-01-DR-A-1011 PL0O8 (GA Plans Level 1)
16156-HGH-WDN-D-ZZ-DR-A-1012 PL0O8 (GA Plans Level 2)
16156-HGH-WDN-D-ZZ-DR-A-1013 PLO2 (GA Plans Level 3)
16156-HGH-WDN-D-ZZ-DR-A-1014 PLO2 (GA Plans Levels 4)
16156-HGH-WDN-D-05-DR-A-1015 PL08 (GA Plans Level 5)
16156-HGH-WDN-D-06-DR-A-1016 PL08 (GA Plans Level 6)
16156-HGH-WDN-D-07-DR-A-1017 PLO6 (GA Plans Roof)

16156-HGH-WDN-D-XX-DR-A-1151 PL06 (GA Elevations NW The Stonebow)
16156-HGH-WDN-D-XX-DR-A-1152 PL06 (GA Elevations SW Hungate)
16156-HGH-WDN-D-XX-DR-A-1153 PLO6 (GA Elevations SE St Johns Square)
16156-HGH-WDN-D-XX-DR-A-1154 PL06 (GA Elevations NE Dundas Street)
16156-HGH-WDN-D-XX-DR-A-1160 PLO6 (GA Elevations Courtyard)
16156-HGH-WDN-D-XX-DR-A-1161 PL06 (GA Elevations Courtyard)

16156-HGH-WDN-D-ZZ-DR-A-2010 PLO3 (Part Plans Refuse Store)
16156-HGH-WDN-D-ZZ-DR-A-2020 PLO3 (Part Plans Cycle Stores)

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 69

D0402_001 K (Landscape Block H Ground Floor Hardworks)

D0402_002 H (Landscape Block H Ground Floor Softworks)

D0402_003 C (Level 5 Community Terrace Hardworks and Softworks)
GBU-GEN-HUYO-3001 A (Tree Pit System Installation in Hardscape Area)

WIB15079-112-R-4-5-1-FRA dated 21.7.21 (Flood Risk Assessment Addendum)
Updated Travel Plan Version 1.4 (dated 21.7.21) prepared by Fore

Transport Statement Versionl .4 (dated 4.8.21) prepared by Fore

Preliminary Sustainability Statement Issue No.3 (dated 21.7.21)

Preliminary Ecological Appraisal Report (July 2021)

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried out
only as approved by the Local Planning Authority.

3 HWAY40 Dilapidation survey

Prior to works starting on site a dilapidation survey of the highways adjoining the site
shall be jointly undertaken with the Council and the results of which shall be agreed
in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of the safety and good management of the public highway
the details of which must be recorded prior to the access to the site by any
construction vehicle.

4 HWAY31 No mud on highway during construction

Prior to the development commencing details of the measures to be employed to
prevent the egress of mud, water and other detritus onto the public highway, and
details of the measures to be employed to remove any such substance from the
public highway shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. Such measures as shall have been approved shall be employed and
adhered to at all times during construction works.

Reason: To prevent the egress of water and loose material creating a hazard on the
public highway.

5 Construction management (CMP)

Prior to commencement of the development, a Construction Management Plan (CMP)
for minimising the creation of noise, vibration and dust during the demolition, site
preparation and construction phases of the development shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The CMP shall contain a
complaints procedure which shall be followed in the event of a complaint being
received about noise, dust, vibration and/or lighting. All works on site shall be

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 70

undertaken in accordance with the approved CMP.

For noise details on types of machinery to be used, use of quieter/silenced machinery,
use of acoustic barriers, prefabrication off site etc, shall be detailed within the CMP.
Where particularly noisy activities are expected to take place then details should be
provided on mitigation, maximum noise levels and noise monitoring.

For vibration details shall be provided on any activities which may result in excessive
vibration, e.g. piling, and details of monitoring to be carried out. Locations of
monitoring positions shall be provided along with details of standards used for
determining the acceptability of any vibration undertaken.

For dust the CMP must include a site-specific risk assessment of dust impacts in line
with the IAQM guidance note and include mitigation commensurate with the scale of
the risks identified. Further information on suitable measures can be found in the dust
guidance note produced by the Institute of Air Quality Management, see
http://iagm.co.uk/guidance/.

For complaints, the procedure, so that in the event of any complaint from a member
of the public about noise, dust, vibration or lighting the site manager has a clear
understanding of how to respond to complaints received. The procedure shall detail
how a contact number will be advertised to the public, what will happen once a
complaint had been received (i.e. investigation), any monitoring to be carried out, how
they intend to update the complainant. Written records of any complaints received
and actions taken should be kept and details forwarded to the Local Authority every
month during construction works by email to the following addresses
public.protection@york.gov.uk and planning.enforcement@york.gov.uk

Reason: In the interest of protecting amenity of surrounding occupants and in
accordance with policy ENV2: Managing Environmental Quality.

6 NOISE7 Restricted hours of construction

The hours of construction, loading or unloading on the site shall be confined to 8:00
to 18:00 Monday to Friday, 9:00 to 13:00 Saturday and no working on Sundays or
public holidays.

Reason: To protect the amenities of adjacent residents.
7 CEMP (Ecology)

Prior to the commencement of development (including ground works and vegetation
removal) a construction environmental management plan (CEMP: Biodiversity) shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The CEMP:
Biodiversity shall include -

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 71

a) Risk assessment of potentially damaging construction activities.

b)  Practical measures (both physical measures and sensitive working practices) to
avoid or reduce impacts during construction (may be provided as a set of method
statements).

c) The location and timing of sensitive works to avoid harm to biodiversity features.
d)  The times during construction when specialist ecologists need to be present on
sSite to oversee works.

e) Responsible persons and lines of communication.

f) Use of protective fences, exclusion barriers and warning signs.

Reason: To ensure the protection of significant ecological features.
8 LEMP (ecology)

Prior to the commencement of development a LEMP (landscape ecological
management plan) shall be submitted to approved in writing by, the local planning
authority. The content of the LEMP shall include -

a) Description and evaluation of features to be managed.

b) Ecological trends and constraints on site that might influence management.

c) Aims and objectives of management.

d) Appropriate management options for achieving aims and objectives.

e) Prescriptions for management actions.

f) Preparation of a work schedule (including an annual work plan capable of being
rolled forward over a five-year period).

g) Details of the body or organisation responsible for implementation of the plan.

h) Ongoing monitoring and remedial measures.

The LEMP shall also include details of the legal and funding mechanism(s) by which
the long-term implementation of the plan will be secured by the developer with the
management body(ies) responsible for its delivery. The plan shall also set out (where
the results from monitoring show that conservation aims and objectives of the LEMP
are not being met) how contingencies and/or remedial action will be identified, agreed
and implemented so that the development still delivers the fully functioning
biodiversity objectives of the originally approved scheme.

Reason: To take account of and enhance the biodiversity and wildlife interest of the
area, and to be in accordance with Paragraph 180 d) of the NPPF to encourage the
incorporation of biodiversity improvements in and around developments, especially
where this can secure measurable net gains for biodiversity.

9  Nesting Birds

No removal of vegetation on site shall take place between 1st March and 31st August
Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 72

inclusive, unless a competent ecologist has undertaken a careful, detailed check of
vegetation for active birds' nests immediately before the vegetation is cleared and
provided written confirmation that active birds nest have been identified and/or that
there are appropriate measures in place to protect nesting bird interest on site. Any
such written confirmation should be submitted to the local planning authority.

Reason: To ensure that breeding birds are protected from harm during construction.
All British birds, their nests and eggs (with certain limited exceptions) are protected
by Section 1 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, as amended.

Informative: The applicant is reminded that, under the Wildlife and Countryside Act
1981, as amended (section 1), it is an offence to remove, damage or destroy the nest
of any wild bird while that nest is in use or being built. Planning consent for a
development does not provide a defence against prosecution under this act. Trees
and scrub are likely to contain nesting birds between 1st March and 31st August
inclusive. Trees and scrub are present on the application site and are to be assumed
to contain nesting birds between the above dates, unless a recent survey has been
undertaken by a competent ecologist to assess the nesting bird activity on site during
this period and has shown it is absolutely certain that nesting birds are not present.

10 Tree planting

Prior to commencement of development (apart from any enabling works) all tree
planting details to include: means of support, and irrigation; maintenance regime, and
responsibilities; soil volumes, and structural soil cell systems where applicable, and
the corresponding paving detail, and locations of underground utilities shall be
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority . Where trees are to be
located within paved areas, the surface area of soil cell systems, soil volumes, and
tree species, and any utilities shall also be shown on a tree planting plan. The
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved detalils.

Reason: The trees are a critical element of the approved landscape scheme which is
integral to the amenity and setting of the development. Suitable detailing and
maintenance will encourage the trees to survive and thrive.

11 LC1 Land contamination - Site investigation

Prior to development, an investigation and risk assessment (in addition to any
assessment provided with the planning application) shall be undertaken to assess
the nature and extent of any land contamination. The investigation and risk
assessment must be undertaken by competent persons. A written report of the
findings shall be produced, submitted to and approval in writing of the Local
Planning Authority. The report of the findings must include:

(i)  asurvey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination (including ground
Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 73

gases where appropriate);
(i)  an assessment of the potential risks to:

- human health,

- property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, pets,
woodland and service lines and pipes,

- adjoining land,

- groundwaters and surface waters,

- ecological systems,

- archaeological sites and ancient monuments;

(i) an appraisal of remedial options, and proposal of the preferred option(s).

This shall be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's
'‘Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11"

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried
out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors.

12 LC2 Land contamination - remediation scheme

Prior to development, a detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition
suitable for the intended use (by removing unacceptable risks to human health,
buildings and other property and the natural and historical environment) shall be
submitted to and approved in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The scheme
shall include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and
remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures. The
scheme shall ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A
of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended use of the land
after remediation.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried
out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors.

13 Land contamination — verification of remediation works
Prior to first occupation or use, the approved remediation scheme for ground gas must
be carried out in accordance with its terms and a verification report that demonstrates

the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced and is subject to
the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 74

Reason: To ensure that risks from ground gas to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to property and ecological
systems.

14 In the event that unexpected contamination is found at any time when carrying
out the approved development, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken and
where remediation is necessary a remediation scheme must be prepared, which is
subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. Following completion
of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a verification report must
be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried
out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors.

15 Archaeology

A programme of post-determination archaeological mitigation, specifically an
archaeological watching brief and excavation is required on select areas of this site.
The archaeological scheme comprises 3 stages of work. Each stage shall be
completed and agreed by the Local Planning Authority before it can be approved.

a) No development within the area of unexcavated archaeology shall commence
until a written scheme of investigation (WSI) has been submitted to and approved by
the local planning authority in writing. For land that is included within the WSI, no
development shall take place other than in accordance with the agreed WSI. The WSI
should conform to standards set by LPA and the Chartered Institute for
Archaeologists.

b)  The site investigation and post-investigation assessment shall be completed in
accordance with the programme set out in the Written Scheme of Investigation
approved under condition (A) and the provision made for analysis, publication and
dissemination of results and archive deposition will be secured. This part of the
condition shall not be discharged until these elements have been fulfilled in
accordance with the programme set out in the WSI.

c) A copy of a report on Block H shall be deposited with City of York Historic
Environment Record to allow public dissemination of results within 6 months of
completion or such other period as may be agreed in writing with the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason: In accordance with Section 16 of NPPF. The site is within the Central Area
Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 75

of Archaeological Importance. The development will affect important archaeological
deposits which must be recorded prior to destruction.

16 Drainage

Prior to commencement of development (apart from any enabling works) details of
the proposed means of foul and surface water drainage, including details of any
balancing works and off-site works, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local
Planning Authority; the development shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details.

The surface water discharge rate (for Block H) shall not exceed 38.2 I/sec (with
proposed drainage to River Foss outfall).

Reason: In accordance with DLP 2018 policy ENV5.

17 Unless otherwise approved in writing by the local planning authority, there shall
be no piped discharge of surface water from the development prior to the completion
of the approved surface water drainage works and no buildings shall be occupied or
brought into use prior to completion of the approved foul drainage works.

Reason: So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied that no foul and surface
water discharges take place until proper provision has been made for their disposal.

18 External materials

Samples of all external materials to be used shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the construction of any works above
the ground floor slab. The development shall be carried out using the approved
materials.

For clarity, this includes vision and any non-vision glazing, flat or pitched roofs. The
samples provided shall be a sufficiently large size to be able to appropriately judge
the material (including joints / fixings where an important part of the visual quality of
the material) and shall be provided together where materials are seen together.

Note: Because of limited storage space at our offices it would be appreciated if sample
materials could be made available for inspection at the site. Please make it clear in
your approval of details application when the materials will be available for inspection
and where they are located.

Reason: So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with the finished
appearance of these details so as to achieve a visually cohesive appearance.

19 Large scale details
Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 76

Prior to the construction of any works above the ground floor slab, large scale detailed
drawings of the items listed below shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority; the works shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details.

a) 1:20 drawings of typical ground-to-roof bay in each wall material and their general
variations, such as differing types of recessed feature planes (brick and metal), any
wall ventilation grilles, guarding, wall interfaces at ground, projecting balconies, set
back floor level, together with overall maximum height AOD.

b) 1:20 drawings of main entrance area including external or semi outdoor soffits and
recessed walls.

c) On-site mock-up sample constructions - A mock up shall be 1:1 scale but shortened
overall sizes of elements can be included. The contents and size of the mock-ups
shall be agreed by the LPA in advance of their construction.

Reason: So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with these details in
the interests of the satisfactory appearance of the development. In accordance with
section 12 of the NPPF.

20  Brickwork

Prior to the construction of any works above the ground floor slab, on site sample
panels of bricks, in each type of bond, including chosen mortar and pointing, and
including any special brick features, shall be constructed and submitted to the Local
Planning Authority for approval. The sample panel shall be 2 x 1.2m minimum overall.
If multiple combinations of brick and/or bond are proposed, each type shall be 1 x
1.2m. The development shall be completed in accordance with the approved
sample/s. The agreed panel/s are also to represent a minimum standard for the
guality of workmanship that the development should achieve, and the panel/s shall
remain on site for the duration of the brickwork package.

Reason: So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with the finished
appearance of these details prior to the commencement of building works so as to
achieve a visually cohesive appearance.

21  Window reveals
Brick window reveals shall be set back a minimum 200mm (approx. one full brick
deep) before the plane of a window. Brick feature recessed wall planes shall be set

back a minimum 100mm (approx. 1/2 brick deep) from the main wall plane.

Reason: To impart an overall high quality and robustness of construction systems and
Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 77

to provide visual relief on a facade.
22  Plant rooms

Prior to the construction of any works above the floor slab of the development, 1:20
scale drawings in plan and elevation for any external plant room enclosures, shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and the works
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. This shall include a
maximum height of any plant equipment within the enclosure.

(Note: for flat roofs, in situations without a solid roof parapet (defined as 1m or higher,
as shown on the approved plans) service protrusions will not generally be allowed
within 2m of any building edge. Permanent external wall fixed equipment or roof
guarding used to service the building should generally be expected not to be permitted
if obtrusive).

Reason: So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with these details in
the interests of the satisfactory appearance of the development.

23  The dwellings shall achieve a reduction in carbon emissions of at least 31%
compared to the target emission rate as required under Part L of the Building
Regulations 2013 and a water consumption rate of 110 litres per person per day
(calculated as per Part G of the Building Regulations).

Should the dwellings not achieve a reduction in carbon emissions of 75%, compared
to the target emission rate as required under Part L of the Building Regulations 2013,
prior to construction a statement to demonstrate that such reductions would not be
feasible or viable shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason: To fulfil the environmental objectives of the NPPF and support the transition
to a low carbon future, and in accordance with policy CC2 of the Publication Draft
Local Plan 2018

24  Plant and machinery

Details of all machinery, plant and equipment to be installed in or located on the
premises, which is audible outside of the premises, shall be submitted to the local
planning authority for approval. These details shall include average sound levels
(LAeq), octave band noise levels and any proposed noise mitigation measures. The
machinery, plant or equipment and any approved noise mitigation measures shall be
fully implemented and operational before the proposed use first opens and shall be
appropriately maintained thereafter.

Note: The combined rating level of any building service noise associated with plant or
Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 78

equipment at the site should not exceed the representative LA90 1 hour during the
hours of 07:00 to 23:00 or representative LA90 15 minutes during the hours of 23:00
to 07:00 at 1 metre from the nearest noise sensitive facades when assessed in
accordance with BS4142: 2014, inclusive of any acoustic feature corrections
associated with tonal, impulsive, distinctive or intermittent characteristics.

Reason: To protect the amenity of nearby properties and the environmental qualities
of the area.

25 Cooking Odour

There shall be adequate facilities for the treatment and extraction of cooking odours.
Details of the extraction plant or machinery and any filtration system required for any
premises put to Class E use shall be submitted to the local planning authority for
written approval. Once approved it shall be installed and fully operational before the
proposed use first opens and shall be appropriately maintained and serviced
thereafter in accordance with manufacturer guidelines.

Note: It is recommended that the applicant refers to the updated Guidance produced
by EMAQ in September 2018 titled "Control of Odour and Noise from Commercial
Kitchen Exhaust Systems (September 2018)" for further advice on how to comply with
this condition. The applicant shall provide information on the location and level of the
proposed extraction discharge, the proximity of receptors, size of kitchen or number
of covers, and the types of food proposed. A risk assessment in accordance with
APPENDIX 3 of the EMAQ guidance shall then be undertaken to determine the level
of odour control required. Details should then be provided on the location and
size/capacity of any proposed methods of odour control, such as filters, electrostatic
precipitation, carbon filters, ultraviolet light/ozone treatment, or odour neutraliser, and
include details on the predicted air flow rates in m3/s throughout the extraction
system.

Reason: To protect the amenity of nearby properties and the environmental qualities
of the area.

26 Internal noise levels

The building envelope of all residential accommodation shall be constructed so as to
achieve internal noise levels of 30 dB LAeq 8 hour (23:00-07:00) and 45 dB LA Max
(23:00 - 07:00) in bedrooms and 35 dB LAeq 16 hour (07:00 - 23:00) in all other
habitable rooms. A detailed scheme demonstrating how these internal noise levels
are to be achieved, shall be approved in writing by the local planning authority and
fully implemented prior to first occupation.

Reason: To protect the amenity of residents.

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 79

27  Hours of operation - commercial units.

The commercial units hereby permitted shall only be open during the hours of 07:00
and 23:00 each day of the week.

Reason: To protect the amenity of residents.
28 Landscaping

The approved landscape scheme for soft works (ref: D0402_002 F Landscape Block
H Ground Floor Softworks) shall be implemented within a period of six months of the
practical completion of the development. Any trees or plants which subsequently die,
are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased, shall be replaced in the next
planting season with others of a similar size and species, unless the Local Planning
Authority agrees alternatives in writing.

Reason: The landscape scheme is integral to the amenity of the development.
29 Travel Plan

The development shall be occupied in accordance with the aims, measures and
outcomes of the submitted Travel Plan (Version 1.4, dated 21 July 2021). Within 12
months of occupation of the site a first year travel survey shall have been submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Results of yearly travel
surveys shall then be submitted annually to the Local Planning Authority for approval.
Should the Local Planning Authority determine that demand for additional cycle
parking exists then such provision shall be provided instead of unallocated car
parking.

Reason: To encourage sustainable travel in accordance with NPPF section 9.

30 St. Johns Square

The approved landscaping scheme in relation to St. Johns Square as detailed on
approved drawing numbers D0248 010 D and D0248 012 shall be implemented
within six months of the substantial completion of the last block (either block D, G or

H).

Reason: To ensure the delivery of public realm that is integral to the Hungate
masterplan, in accordance with the social objectives of the NPPF.

31 Entrances

No doors or gates shall be fitted so they would open outwards over the adjacent public
highway.

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 80

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to prevent inconvenience and
obstruction to other highway users

32 Flood Risk

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted flood risk
assessment (FRA) prepared by Waterman Infrastructure and Environment Ltd dated
July 2015 (ref: CIV14928 ES 002) as amended by the Flood Risk Addendum also
prepared by WI & E Ltd dated 11 June 2021 (ref: WIB15079-112-R-4-4-1-FRA). It
shall also provide the finished floor levels as shown on the approved ground floor plan
- drawing 16156-HGH-WDN-D-00-DR-A-1010 PLO5.

The mitigation measures detailed shall be fully implemented prior to occupation. The
measures detailed above shall be retained and maintained thereafter throughout the
lifetime of the development.

Reason: To reduce the risk and impact of flooding to the proposed development and
future occupants.

33  Waste collection

The managing agent of the site shall be responsible for rotating bins; to ensure full
bins are relocated to the larger store on the Dundas Street side of the building and
that empty bins are positioned in the smaller stores at all times.

Reason: In the interests of good design, visual and residential amenity and highway
safety, and to ensure that waste can be collected by the Council.

INFORMATIVE - The placing of waste bins within the public realm / highway is harmful
to visual amenity and potentially a safety issue. The Council's waste services have
advised they would access the bin store fronting Dundas Street. It is recommended
agreement is made with waste services, so they would collect waste from the store to
resolve the aforementioned issues.

34 Drainage infrastructure

No building or other obstruction including landscape features shall be located over or
within 3 (three) metres either side of the centre line of the water main, i.e. a protected
strip width of 6 (six) metres, that enters the site. If the required stand-off distance is
to be achieved via diversion or closure of the water main, the developer shall submit
evidence to the Local Planning Authority that the diversion or closure has been agreed
with the relevant statutory undertaker.

Reason: To allow sufficient access for maintenance and repair work at all times.
Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 81

35 Car parking

At least 3 of the car parking spaces allocated to the development hereby permitted
shall be disabled parking bays.

Reason: In accordance with section 9 of the NPPF to address the needs of people
with disabilities and reduced mobility in relation to all modes of transport.

8.0 INFORMATIVES:
Notes to Applicant

1. STATEMENT OF THE COUNCIL'S POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE APPROACH

In considering the application, the Local Planning Authority has implemented the
requirements set out within the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 38)
in seeking solutions to problems identified during the processing of the application.
The Local Planning Authority took the following steps in order to achieve a positive
outcome: negotiated a reduced scale of building; use of conditions and s106.

2. LEGAL AGREEMENT

Your attention is drawn to the existence of a legal obligation under Section 106 of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 relating to this development.

Contact details:

Case Officer:  Jonathan Kenyon
Tel No: 01904 551323

Application Reference Number: 21/00280/FULM Item No: 5a



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 83

Hungate Development Site, Hungate, Y ork

21/00280/FULM f
(615 oy Esri (UK |

The Hiscox Building

ot
0% e \\
Scale : 1:1389
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission Organisation |City of York Council
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2000. Department |Env, Transport & Planning

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may

lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Comments Site Location Plan

Date 08 January 2025

SLA Number [Not Set

Produced using ESRI (UK)'s MapExplorer 2.0 - http://www.esriuk.com




This page is intentionally left blank



COUNCIL

Planning Committee A

To be held on 16" January 2025

Gg abed



21/00280/FULM — Hungate Development Site,
Hungate, York

Erection of an apartment block to comprise residential units
(Use Class C3) together with flexible commercial uses (Use
Class E and F2), landscaping and associated works (Block H)

CCCCCCC

98 abed



Site Location Plan

I.
\ CITY OF

COUNCIL

YORK

City of York Council Planning Commitiée Meeting= 16th January 2025

Capyrlght of this drawlng s vasied In the Arenliec and I must not e copled ar

repraduced wlthout consent, Flg
drawl all ga e must vlslt fna sl ta
oha ok e rnlnllan i alr work, Woadon Partnarshlp to be anvise

vd slte candlijans,
S N IF IN BOUBT ASK

Key | Radllne Boundary Plan = 111250 @ A3

She-Block H
Nua 1,248 Acres | 0,5049 Ha

—— ] olher |ard awnea by Applleant

FLO1 Al 25/01/21 Issued for Planning
Rev Drawn Dale Comment

Key / Locatlon Flle

HUNGATE

WWAWEEDON

«larchitects

Harry's Yard T: 0121 454 4171
176178 Newnal| 5t F. 0121 456 3152
Birmingham B3 18J WWwW wesdonareh|tects, co,uk
Froject

HUNGATE BLOCK H, YORK
Drawlng Tltle

REDLINE BOUNDARY PLAN

Date  JAN 2021 Drawn AL Checked DV
Scale  111250@A3 Status PLANNING
Job Mumber rawlng Number-Revlslon

16156- AOTO1 PLO1

M 2 = 3 = = . = 11 27 = 2 = = = = r =




Proposed Elevation Plan — Facing The Stonebow

ROOF
+22.35) FFL
N 4

LEVEL (&
+19.350 FFL
h

LEVEL &3
+16.350 FFL
F

LEVEL 04
+13.350 FRL
v

AR

LEVEL X
+10.350 FFL
v

LEVEL @
+7.350 FFL
v

TR

LEVEL 09
+4.350 FFL
w

LEVEL 00+
+1.275 FFL
w

LEVEL 00
+0.000 FFL
b, A

EXTERRML WAL TYPE A
it Wl Frarg Bask

ELEVATION HEY

EXTERNAL WALL TYPE £
V! el 3
[

iy
b Frovmatwred benigrey

GA Elevation NW
1:100

onebow

4%

— CITY OF

EXTERHAL WAL TVPE S
oy Fincing Bk

EXTERIAL AL TYPE P
Brown Fuoeg Brick

EATERRAL WAL TYPE D
B! Cresn Facing Brick

EMTEERAL WAL TYRED
Loced Sazna

i
=

PARAPETE
Colgur; RAL - TEC

EXTERMAL WKDCWES
Mpurmain | Timbes compers

BALOONIES | BALLSTRADES
Coigur; RAL - TEC

BALDORIES | PERROSATED
METAL SLEEER

88 abed

b s

EXTERMAL LOUVRES
Colour: AL . TRE

SHOFFTOHT GLAZING BVITEN
Tharrasdy breden Ahrssaen

NOTEE

. AN marieriaks 53 00 oty ngialed i acoamanoe
it MarFSOIra s M T s

2. Any discragancies found on his crawisg am i
e et | s with e redavart paopls
CHECH B ASH.

YORK

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 16th January 2025




ELEVATION KEY

A EOESRAL WAL TR EXTENHAL WALL TYPE E
Had Mol Facng Back Warboul Wieied Claddog
e, Prpsaatered benmigrep

B ERTEMRSL @R THPE 2 F FARAPETD
Doy Fong B Coipyr: MAL - TEC

e s ! Timbes compzaiis

EATRRRAL WALL TYPE O by BALCONIES | BALUSTRADGS
© [ Crasm Facing Drick Dok AAL - TOC
p  EATERRALMMLTYRED w  BALDONES ) PERRORATED
Lol Wans METAL SCEREN

- " EATEFRFL #ALL TYPE & " EXTEMHAL ‘¥ INIRYE
Brown Facing Orick

i
!

ROCE (1111 }
422380 FFL o)

;,;;;;;gl__ i B e —— ] 1] 1] 1) SR PR——— | . ' [[[[1011101 T

=] S : @

LEVEL 05
+16.380 l»Fl

LEVEL 04
+13.350 FFL l

(4]

LEVEL 03
DE;(]FF[

LEVEL 02
+7.3680 FCL

LEVEL 01

+4 350 FFL B
v

LEVEL 00+
+1275 FFL
v

LEVEL 0‘(' ]
+0.000 FF

GA Etevatlon NE Dundas . . .
o p Proposed Elevation — Facing Dundas Street and Hiscox

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 16th January 2025

L EXTERMAL | CIRAES
Colour Bl - TEG
M SHOFFTDHT TLATING 37ITEN
Therrly breden Aurssamn
MOTEE

1. AN raleriss 8 ba sty insinliesd in acoormance
wih MrFa LIS FedamTHTIatore

£ Ay cmcmpancas lund cn this dresang am in

| be quesied | raimad with the relavant paople

ICHECH, B ASE,

PO SAW  CRCEA  Lipdaed ' st pees
Mot S5W SO Bevices Cond, Eriasce w0 Com
Updabed

Mo Am (G087  GF Rascdardsl & Pmssar wesks Locuid



LEVEL 08
+19.350 FFL
e A

LEVEL 03
+16.350 FFL
D, -

LEVEL 04
13350 FFL
v

LEVEL 02
+10.350 FFL
<

LEVEL O
+T.350 FFL
Y

LEVEL 01
+4.350 FFL
N 4

LEVEL 00+
+1.275FFL
-

LEVEL 02
+0.000 FFL
v

1:100

!
\ CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Proposed Elevation facing St Johns Square

R o]
M

ELEVATIIM KEY

EXNTERHAL WALL THPE &,
P WAl Faing liick

ENTERMAL WALL TVPE &
Werical Mstl Clading
Cokour. Prv-emah som Ercroageey

]

EXTERHAL WALL TVPE B
oty Fascing A

EXTERHAL WALL TWPEF
Frewan Py Brck

EK‘EE"MI. WALL TVPEC:

Gt Fintar B

EXTERHAL WALL TVPE D
Lol Blore

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 16th January 2025

pi o
L

PARAFETR
Codoar RAL - TRD

EXTERHAL WINDOWS
Al ¢ Tonbs! G

BRICONES | BALLETRADES
Cobiua RAL - TR

BRICOHEE | FERFORATED
PAETAL SEREER

EXTEARAL LOWNARS
Calgar RAL - THC

SHOPFRCMT GLAZIHG BYETEM
Thaserasly backosr, Akurinasm:

NOTES b

1 1. A manariaks i bo ciriely inslabed in pxeondanca

il SarulRcluia’ s ecomftaidel s

2 Ay disciepancies ound on s diswing one o

1 b gueried ¢ rosed with e rekraoni peaple.

CHECK & ABH.



RCCF
+22.350 FFL
v

= g T M

LEVEL (&
+19.350 FFL
v

LEVEL 03

+16.350 FFL
©

LEVEL 4
+13350 FFL
w

LEVEL (@
+10.350 FFL
v

LEVEL 02
+7.3%0 FFL
v

LEVEL 01
+4 350 FFL
\ <

LEVEL 00+
+1 275 FFL
by <

LEVEL (0
+0.000 FFL
E

ELEWATICH KEY

GA Elevatlon SW Hungate A F:?n:ﬂ?-::;.;zm* - E ﬂmﬁg:ﬂ:tl = 5m'=.fxm=

Coioar Pra-wastbared bronosigray
1:100 T

CETERMAL WaLL TYPE B
Grwy Facing Drick

PARAPLTES EHOPFRONT GLADING SYSTEM
Colpar RAL - TR Thasraly bokee Muminkm

" | | . HOTES
\ C I T Y O F ] EETERMAL WALL TYFE P G EETE R WIRDOWS

Dacrer. Fascing Dck: Muriniun [ Tinksar compomis

- - 1. Al matwriais 1o be sty ingtabed v scondanco
c EXTERMAL WaLL TFFE C ;w H BALCIHIES | BALLSTRADES Wi ManuEs oM ardalions
Bl / Crmarr. Facing B 1 Cokar RAL - TRE
. - it ' 2 Ay tiecrepances iound o this divsing st
—— - - | b queried | raised with te relesant peapks.

LT - CHEC, & AEK.
COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - l@_ﬂnuzﬂy 272 - Ko s




APARTMENT TYPE KEY

[]

STUDID APARTMENT

GEMERAL AREA KEY

. 2 BEDROOM APARTMENT / 8 PERSON OCCUPANCY

SMOKE RISER

[]

GROUND FLOOR TYPE KEY

APPLICATION SITE BOUNDARY LINE

\noEaNOLS AL

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

s HLHEH
oA LS
MOEEHDLS THE

Proposed Groun
: N - N

SOUTHEAST ELEVATION - 5TJCHN'S SOUSRE

BLOCK G
(not built)

EOUTH WEBST ELEVATION - HUNGATE 8TREET

HUNGATE STREET

STUDENT RESIDEMCE

BLOCK D
(not built)

SQUARE

BLOCK F|

ST.JOHN'S

26 abed

mW[’H)UN

gt Bk K
oy

GROUND FLOOR

seine

p—
18




Proposed First Floor B )
s e
ﬂ - iy d.-'.l'll,__ _ N
- B oz B 1 ] 178 Ty
APARTMENT TYPE KEY il ] el T
i) = y | = fi= r':ult..' — I y &=
I:I STUDIO APARTMENT 9= s
—————————————————————————————— =) 5 = 15 %=
|:| 1 BEDROOM APARTMENT / 2 PERSON OCCUPANCY <1 7 -
______________________________ == ﬂ sgmin L .FI T I-‘a’_ a Gz =
|:| 2 BEDROOM APARTMENT | 4 PERSON OCCUPANCY conn2 = *Bn - 15 H ]
______________________________ T B L 'y FE
Il J 5 - :-' iy
. 3 BEDROCM APARTMENT | 8 PERSOM OCCUPANCY —] Q ] "
H 'II - B
GENERAL AREA KEY P |
I:I STAR .
______________________________ =l |
— Trepy g, i
. LIFT ot S
_____________________ i =
I:I FLANTROOM — | - "
| §4 =
—————————————————————————————— e = H
|:| CYCLE STORE B ‘T‘E
—————————————————————————————— ':'|——-I r 1 '
I:I REFUSE \
_____________________ L1 ﬂ .
|:| COMMERGCIAL L : S B S i
|:| AMENITY - =g
r i
L.
. RISER O e OB :I B8
—————————————————————————————— T, = 0 | O .
. SMOKE RISER — e - _
|I | , |'-_ { — N
_ |CM1|. Corrder
| 8
S city oFf =I5
B ' = = T
= ] oy oy =
I OR K 0 “gEH 4 M
_ R ]
COUNCIL CItyOfYOI'k C

H

€6 abed

HE43 Courbm H Dlessi i
w

Camidar

FE

o rgE




Proposed Plan — Floors 2, 3 and 4

o

APARTMENT TYPE KEY

STUDMO APARTMENT

[

3 BEDROOM APARTMENT / & PERSON OCCUPANCY

[]
GEMNERAL AREA KEY
[]

I:' SMOKE RISER

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

City of York C I

Camidor

i

Main Com
(Camm 1)

oe.
==

rez s LT '~ :
Do -l - ]
S| f f f 5
) =¥ v — L, ——
[ == 1 B
-y 1 [, I-:l" - L= ,':i
N ram-pl” i - 0
' T e ) f 1
O | e ] o xl>
.*""--? £ ol fE K =y
I [, et 4 s
e N - | - _rt.'
= - TR o I::\ ] s [I
F. ,.[ ) ~ C
) o e
e Ty o) | i
Y . - = )
= L P A __&l
Jf- - II Dol — | J
H - = L | 1 c
L] / Bl [] ~ =a
= ] i N
L 3 RS H
[x) L =.
O [ 5
7L =
1 Do
By
g -
s =Tai)
i §
g !
& N e
E H
! ar
¥ i

Camdor

T O M S P

if
LJ |
i o
bED ﬁ
1
L]
[ I8
i

ik
it
]
Il
']
B
5
¥
=
a1
#
I

Be




Proposed Fifth
Floor

APARTMENT TYPE KEY

STUDIO APARTMENT

[l

3 BEDROOM APARTMEMNT / &€ PERSON OCCUPANCY

GENERAL AREA KEY

SMOKE RISER

ROQF TYPE KEY

GREEN ROOF

MAINTEMANCE BALUSTRADING

AN
|

1

{rfer to note £
\
g CITY OF
COUNCIL

City of York Cou

HB

iIP

=
0

ain Core
[Caen 1)

74
|
—d
|""-».-..|
!
-
!
sty i
=
A o
4
Ll
§
4:
H
H
.
T

L

e e |

1
HE

1L Cranps HE Fiai.
w

[ 3
—— -'-'_H-D izl
= i
=
(m| (m|
3'.;'D =
H =]

afiuary

a0
thae

T

1B IC ke 1 D icr

-

. j e
HH
ama j
||
T O
qE
N HH
;PO
3 G
n{ o
ﬁ -
— | S
= =2 o
A =
H T 5i
|j | 50




Proposed Sixth

Floor

APARTMENT TYPE KEY

[]

STUDIO APARTMENT

3 BEDROOM APARTMENT i & PERSON DCCUPANCY

L]
GENERAL AREA KEY
L]

ROOF TYPE KEY

I:l SMOKE RIZER

201 GREEMROOF

MAINTEMANCE BALUSTRADING
{refar to nota &)

COUNCIL

=

F

— L

T _'

i

d

=

il
o &

St FoaT Wi

1161 3 Courtmm P Do sicr

amen Ao
B - Y 0
hTEL e 2

L'm | B
w00 EDU,,

i il

Carigr

L

I
L

= R —
|1 SEaatas: T =TT
1 - T e Y
'?ﬁ“ﬁéﬁ R
= T ) — -
N 1 @QEJ
s [ T
-
Jame ] -U
St omeas §5
.'_. LO
=T=i I
-‘_?_.?TL': 7
P s
SR |y
N L
[E pomy ) N
e [wal



APARTMEMNT TYPE KEY BB,

D
@ S S,
STUDO APARTMENT

P ro posed I:‘ 1 BEDROOCM APARTMENT [ 2 PERSON OCCUPANCY

R Oof P I an |:| 2 BEDROCM APARTMENT / 4 PERSON OCCUPANCY

[]

3 BEDROOM APARTMENT / & PERSON OCCUPANCY

[]
GEMERAL AREA KEY
[]

I:‘ RISER . -U
______________________________ |
I:‘ SMOKE RISER 4 . E% ((%
i i
ROOF TYPE KEY dqi !. 5 @
. 2.01 GREEN ROOF E : : F\.
- [ e, ? o u.l'
o ] |
| 5|
2
) sy e M S
L 4;’ AET|
- 1] S
e Jcme il
LT 0 ) o
I = iIn
- Lot |
i FEEETAY |
] A A 5 \ A
I+ v AL ] z
5 ! fes]
E — o ™
MAINTEMANCE BALUSTRADING E 5 Ll
== 202 yreterio note 6) E - —
| o
: Fall r »
E NE 15 1 P
B 4 . P bt 0
= \ M ¥ LA
E 1 P
] ry % - 3 v
- ’1/ b ) [ R e gl
L rd L
] L s
i i ; ; i - = L= T =
COUNCIL City of York CoungjlPlanning Committee Meeting—=16th-Janyry26 L -




P

jab)

ge 98

i

mm
mmmmu
HE

hitps Aduncanandgiove coms caap

i
i
|
M
j
|

terraceventances. L0086, Sive Grey

ol

Merstats Prore permeatie pavig o covate
alzms, randum course, colour Hacvest Buft

piivacy scremns on pavarised 1mid simel Yurme

et planiers,
Matrui charcost ok 180 180mem xBlmen v

m - b . Ll
) =
Eﬂ Metal radrg and maEnng getn
Shade vwrmt hartecesin Groundove and
S pg—

Senebowlurdes € - Comenaton stver gy
1o mtch mxsting

H
i
2
:
1
i

and slats Wit Grante hart nEsthennely’

wdge e

:
m
i
i
|

Tierboar (Weentern Rt Codar shts) N1 & rress
Buspke scuipturel phty equgment is be
Getvansed stnel wructire wih putic

Like ragar stund undemaeth

WEB Marahuls consenvtion karh as edging
Ddvidusly commiasoned

Soecrmn umal muUtalemeed ee
Urtoan ormarmeetal sesing

!
:
!
!

Bespoke steel erce
Propesad HW Srber banch
Beapoke nfrmal pley tems
Bycychs shlter wih grean oo
consatveticn ke suround
Low omametal hedge
Shase therwnt lawn

i
3 .
W W

Lighting TEC
Trew plarter

Eerem
Hungate, York
Landscape Block H
Sreundticer
Hardwerks

AT

SRS Mwees
Pe—

KEY- POCIUM AND PRIVATE SPACE
FOR SOFTWORKS DETALS REFER TO D0402_ 060

KEY- PUBLIC SPACE

DEERIIIINESS |
RNl _ ,

|
=
,

.,I
SRR
SR
N
AR
RO S SRR R AN
NG R
R TR
R SRR
R ////.///////m.ﬁlllﬁ/arﬁ»—;
SRS
SRR &
R R
£
Nahams

=
RS

e
REtee S
N ks

S
SN
SN
SR

=y
7 &
&F
SR
S NSNS
RN
AT

R
p L
RN
AN

Ay

S5
7

STONEBOW
LAFOUT INDICAT

1222295,
s,
2995574
0
_—

City of York Counclil Plannin

3
Q
N\
mw :
]
2
I .
|
i
i %

YORK

Proposed Hard
Landscaping
x5



AL X
LT
255557552,
252222225553

%
oo
95550222255553

/lllll//lllfll¢

C
2
oL
222552
222255%:

2
L

o
rfg
e,
5

ing (Extract)

sed Hard Landscap

FACE

ProESO

KEY- FODIUM AND PRIVAT

Legend

id laid

rigi

]

Clay pavers,

ing

with Marshalls conservation kerb as edg

Marshalls Pricra permeable paving to private

lver Grey

5

400x400x65mm

terraces/entrances,

colour

in3

ite aggregate seft paving

ral gran

ist

Marshalls M

slZes,

E
a
=
&
=
=

STONEBOW

, colour Harvest Buff

random course

miber (Western Red Cedar slats) hit & miss

i

E

LAYOUT INDICATIVI

Ivanised mild steel frame Lighting TBC

privacy Screens on ga

and planters

2227/ 4
27, /,
2557,

22
’/

2

o

5227,

with

"

imwards,

Bespoke steel gate, opening
bespoke steel fence

PUBLIC SPACE

KEY

Vorkstone sefts

and slabs with granite kerb unitsfchannels!

edge trims

's Sguare

=
]
o
=
W
=
=]
E
=}
I

Proposed HW timber bench

Conservation silver grey

Stonebow/Dundas St

'3/153”""
2

s
19222299
o0, S

2922255557

slab: 450x450x70mm to paved areas as shown

to match existing

Block paving

Mistral charcoal block 160x160mm x80mm with 255

conservation kerb surround

3
g
m
g
g
o)
o
M
8
t
=
2
]
s
w

Metal railing and matching gate

Bespoke sculptural play equipment to be

ioned
By hitps-iduncanandgrove.com/ osap

individually commiss

B =111

Bespoke informal play items

Tree planter

(@)

8
b
L
&
£
>
&
2
[
L
g
i)

FOR SOFTWORKS DETAILS REFER TO DD402_002

Galvanised steel structure with public

bike repair stand undemeath

Specimen medium size trees

\
J

o
x

(

AR ARRNS NN

QR

trees

small multi

AN

Shade tolerant herbaceous groundcover and

ormamental grass planting

NS

hllllllllillllll,

Low omamental hedge

RN

S
%

<0

s
SO

.
3

SR
SRR

S
N T

AN e
T SR
////ﬂ.J ..J//M///////

SRR
S
gl

‘,
A
D S

SRR

SN
R

SN

/mm//

Shade tolerant lawn

SN
R

RO,
-

A

1ugk council Planning Committee Me 2 l6t

Cily Ul

Urban omamental planting

w
@)
>
T
O

COUNCIL




Lot

Proposed specimen tress

S ave 4550 Iigh, RE. Gt 2026 amg.
claar sten mn. 2.0 m

ot Betuls pendule Fastgats

Proposed Soft Landscaping

€ Cercifiphyhum japoricum
Hm  Famemes moks Wisehey Supre
Er  Esoprous ewa

Tet
Rowkewn Medalion suf

Low Shrubs and Herbaosous
ou

Al shuta § [w and herbacocus §
Parking Ba;

Low Shrubs and Herbeceous street
| v——

hiuts AW2 ard herbececcs T m

Y

Comuiners stroet level
Lavandus Hidoote (3L CG Stock to 40em
o) S

Madging - ki evirgesn hidge :
N (50 CG Swck 1 #00m i), SR - (

Saggerad iow or whers wide! #dd

rowa.

mﬁw mporica e Sughe
D

- Green Rool to storege wes.
Crwen reol - kow weight 30mm thick H
s '
wetsrprcotergiedia system 1o arht
detats
— o
Vor tarowosa dutal @ sountary Festrans e 12

P
For ey wcrdzmart, wrwet Laise, ane seings
sl

& spares s esmc wen Py
£ et T n e gt ot 8 Boun
5 Ueer it 2 Dan
D e vhied 4 oy 2 man
B Uian wheed Wbeean o boarday akbd & S5
4 Corpel adoed ace dbdCedmz B3 DED
- mecwin o
=

>

\
g CITY OF

§ / N - e
4 e N\ R / T
Appllanii A Sesthdery L / K v /N ’ . — / 3 Hungate, York
E PRSI / / V4 \\\ / N\ /| L/ I
/ . N ¢ \ == e e IR <
/ / \9,(_,0‘ \ LAvouT m)yxn’/ VE ONLY \\ / — " BNy A i DGR
$ ff — L ——— 2 Ground Floer
v
\

AN / . o
COUNCIL s s w s s___Citv of York Council Planni :tteéé%:eting - 16447 '\! ffuary 2025 16

D 4

' el AN -
& 4\ PR -




Legent

Proposed Soft @ SR ommanong

dear siem min. 20 m
. Epf  Estula penoula Fastiglata
1&0cm plus head 160cm, gith s 16-18cm

(Extract) CF - wninen
Ea:mmmﬂun}mmm
et

Turt
Fowiawn Medalion turf

Low Shrubs and HerDacsous

courtyard planting

All shrubs 5 llire and herDaceous 3
Ire - shnubs 4m2 and herbaceous
TAin.m. Planted In groups 3, 5 and 9
10% Wibumum davidll {shru)

10% Sarcocoesa humilks (shud)
10%: Ansmons Honorne Jobert

Al 'shrube & Iitre and herdaceous 3 I -
ghrubs 42 and harbaceous TAin.m
pachysandra at Afin.m
Pianted In groupe 3, Sand 3

15% Rissa Kent {shrub)

20% Linope muscar

10% Bergenia Angel Klss

20°% Garankum renardl

5% Pachysandra temmingils

@ Containers strast lewel
Lavandula Hidcote (3L CG Siock o S0cm
hi), Sm2

- low
5L C:G Sinck o 40¢m HE), SAin.m - doubie
staggenad mw of where wider add furher
WS,

Species:
ELoymous japonicis Jean Hughes

(Green Roof to storags area
Graen roof - 10w welght 40mim thick -
XF301 type vegetaian Diankst, [3id over

"‘;Q“ CITY OF mmwmm
g COUNCIL




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes
	Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 05/12/2024 Planning Committee A
	Minutes


	5a Hungate Development Site, Hungate, York [21/00280/FULM]
	Hungate Development Site, Hungate, York Site Plan [21/00280/FULM]
	Hungate Development Site, Hungate, York Presentation [21/00280/FULM]
	Slide 1: Planning Committee A
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8
	Slide 9
	Slide 10
	Slide 11
	Slide 12
	Slide 13
	Slide 14
	Slide 15
	Slide 16
	Slide 17



